
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

Acting City Administrator 
 Cathy Murillo 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Gregg Hart 
Frank Hotchkiss  
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

DECEMBER 16, 2014 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

12/16/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the adjourned regular meeting of November 24, 2014, and the regular meeting 
of November 25, 2014. 
  

2. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Business Tax Exemption For Artists 
Earning Less Than $5,000 In Annual Gross Receipts (210.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adding Section 5.04.735 of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code to Create a Business Tax Exemption For Artists Earning 
Less Than $5,000 in Annual Gross Receipts. 
  

3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Hotel And Related Commerce Zone 
Amendment (Clean-Up Amendment) For Area A Of The Cabrillo Plaza 
Specific Plan (640.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Section 28.22.030 of Chapter 
28.22 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 
  



 

12/16/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  November 2014 Investment Report (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the November 2014 Investment Report. 
  

5. Subject: Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements For The Four 
Months Ended October 31, 2014 (250.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial 
Statements for the Four Months Ended October 31, 2014. 
  

6. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Alameda Park Well Relocation 
Project - Infrastructure And Site Restoration (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Reject the apparent low bid for construction from Aguilera Brothers 

Construction, Inc., as non-responsive for the Alameda Park Well 
Relocation Project - Infrastructure and Site Restoration; and 

B. Award a contract with Brough Construction, Inc., in their lowest responsive 
bid amount of $180,855 for construction of the Alameda Park Well 
Relocation Project - Infrastructure and Site Restoration, Bid No. 3728; and 
authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve 
expenditures up to $18,100 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment. 

 
7. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of Voluntario Street Curb Cuts Project 

(530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc., in 
their low bid amount of $210,890 for construction of the Voluntario Street Curb 
Cuts Project, Bid No. 3739, and authorize the Public Works Director to execute 
the contract and approve expenditures up to $21,089 to cover any cost increases 
that may result from contract change orders for extra work and differences 
between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment. 
  

8. Subject:  Contract For El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Stormwater 
Master Plan (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
City Professional Services contract, subject to approval as to form by the City 
Attorney, with CDM Smith in the amount of $134,728 for design services of the El 
Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Stormwater Master Plan, and authorize the 
Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $13,472 for extra 
services of CDM Smith that may result from necessary changes in the scope of 
work. 



 

12/16/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
  

9. Subject:  Contract For Final Design Of El Estero Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Secondary Process Improvements Project - Phase II (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 

Services contract with Brown and Caldwell in the amount of $788,683 for 
final design of the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondary 
Process Improvements Project - Phase II, and authorize the Public Works 
Director to approve expenditures of up to $78,868 for extra services of 
Brown and Caldwell that may result from necessary changes in the scope 
of work; and  

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Finding that the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Secondary Treatment Process Improvement Project is Substantially 
Complex and, Therefore, Requires a Construction Contract Retention of 
Ten Percent. 

 
 

10. Subject:  Armored Car Transportation Services Agreement (210.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Finance Director to negotiate and 
execute a one-year contract, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, with 
Brinks Security Services to provide Armored Car Transportation services for the 
period of January 1, 2015, through December 31, 2015, for an annual amount of 
$36,120. 
  

11. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of Planning 
Commission Approval For 511 Brosian Way (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Set the date of January 27, 2015, at 2:00 p.m. for hearing the appeal filed 

by Patricia Foley of the Planning Commission approval of an application 
for property owned by John Park and located at 511 Brosian Way, 
Assessor's Parcel No. 047-030-011, A-1 One-Family Residence Zone, 
General Plan Designation: Low Density Residential.  The project proposes 
construction of a two-story, 5,886 square-foot, single-family residence and 
attached three-car garage on a vacant 2.2-acre lot in the Hillside Design 
District.  The project includes 3,870 cubic yards of fill grading and 510 
yards of cut grading.  The discretionary application required for the project 
is a Coastal Development Permit to allow the proposed development in 
the Appealable Jurisdiction of the City's Coastal Zone; and 

B. Set the date of January 26, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. for a site visit to the 
property located at 511 Brosian Way. 



 

12/16/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
CONSENT PUBLIC HEARINGS 

12. Subject:  Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (TEFRA) Hearing For 
Cottage Health Systems Debt Issuance (280.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of 
title only, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving 
the Issuance of the California Statewide Communities Development Authority 
Revenue Bonds (Cottage Health System Obligated Group), Series 2015, in an 
Aggregate Principal Amount Not to Exceed $150,000,000 for the Purpose of 
Financing and Refinancing the Acquisition, Construction, Improvement, 
Equipping, Renovation, Rehabilitation and Remodeling of Certain Health Support 
Facilities of Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital and Certain Other Matters Related 
Thereto. 
  

13. Subject:  Request For Designation Of 400 Hitchcock Way (Tesla Motors, 
Inc.) As A Community Benefit Project (640.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council find the proposed development at 400 Hitchcock 
Way for Tesla Motors, Inc., a Community Benefit Project pursuant to Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code Section 28.85.020.A.3 and allocate 8,700 square feet of 
nonresidential floor area to the project from the Community Benefit Project 
category. 
  

NOTICES 

14. The City Clerk has on Thursday, December 11, 2014, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

15. Cancellation of the regular City Council meetings of December 23 and December 
30, 2014, and January 6, 2015. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 



 

12/16/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

16. Subject:  Public Hearing On The Proposed Modification Of The 2011-2015 
Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District 
(290.00) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Modifying the Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism 
Business Improvement District; and 

B. Adopt the Modified Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business 
Improvement District Management District Plan. 

 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

17. Subject:  Stage Two Drought Update (540.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an update on the status of the current 
drought and related efforts. 
  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

18. Subject:  Consideration Of Drought-Related Restrictions And Regulations 
(640.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive a report outlining possible water use and development restrictions 

to be considered in response to drought;  
B. Direct Planning Division staff to further develop options for development-

related regulations in consultation with the Planning Commission, and 
return to Council for action in 2015 pending persistent or worsening 
drought conditions; and 

C. Direct Water Resources staff to work with the Water Commission on 
further water use restrictions and return to Council for action in 2015 
pending persistent or worsening drought conditions. 

 
 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 



 

12/16/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

CLOSED SESSIONS 

19. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney - Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Frank 
Banales, Sebastian Aldana Jr., Jacqueline Inda, Cruzito Herrera Cruz, and 
Benjamin Cheverez, v. City of Santa Barbara, et al., SBSC Case No.1468167. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



11/24/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
DEC 16 2014 #1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING 
November 24, 2014 

3626 SAN REMO DRIVE 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy Murillo, Randy Rowse, Mayor 
Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  Dale Francisco, Gregg Hart, Bendy White. 
Staff present:  Acting City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 20, 2014, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City 
Hall, and on the Internet. 
 
SITE VISIT 
 
Subject:  3626 San Remo Drive 
 
Recommendation:  That Council make a site visit to the property located at 3626 San 
Remo Drive, which is the subject of an appeal hearing scheduled for November 25, 
2014, at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Discussion: 

Staff led Councilmembers on a walk around the project site and answered 
questions about the proposed development. 

 
  



11/24/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 1:55 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



11/25/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
NOV 16 2014 #1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 25, 2014 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance 
Committee met at 12:30 p.m.  The Ordinance Committee, which ordinarily meets at 
12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco (2:05 p.m.), Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, 
Cathy Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  Acting City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, 
Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Phil Walker, Ethan Shenkman. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 1 – 12) 
 
The titles of ordinances related to Consent Calendar items were read. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Rowse/White to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 
Unanimous roll call vote. 
 

  



11/25/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

1. Subject:  Minutes 
 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting of November 4, 2014. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 
 

2. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance To Amend Municipal Code Title 16, Liquid 
And Industrial Waste Disposal (540.13) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the Municipal Code By 
Repealing Title 16 in its Entirety and Adding Title 16 Pertaining to Liquid and 
Industrial Waste Disposal. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5675. 

 
3. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance To Amend Municipal Code To Require 

The Payment Of Prevailing Wages On Public Works Projects As Defined By 
California Senate Bill 7 (210.01) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara to Amend 
Municipal Code Section 4.52.160 to Require the Payment of Prevailing Wages 
on Public Works Projects as Defined and Required by California Senate Bill 7. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 25, 2014, report from the 
Acting Assistant City Administrator; proposed ordinance). 

 
4. Subject:  Banking Services Agreement (210.03) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a three-year contract with Union Bank 
to provide banking services for the period of January 1, 2015, through December 
31, 2017. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Contract No. 25,036 (November 25, 
2014, report from the Acting Assistant City Administrator). 

 
5. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2015 First Quarter Review (250.02) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements for the Three 

Months Ended September 30, 2014; and 
 

(Cont’d) 
  



11/25/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

5. (Cont’d) 
 

B. Approve the proposed first quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2015 
appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the attached 
Schedule of Proposed First Quarter Adjustments. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (November 25, 2014, report from the 
Acting Assistant City Administrator). 

 
6. Subject:  October 2014, Investment Report (260.02) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the October 2014, Investment Report. 
 

Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 25, 2014, report from the 
Acting Assistant City Administrator). 

 
7. Subject:  Self-Insured Workers' Compensation Program Annual Report 

(350.08) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council receive the Annual Self-Insured Workers' 
Compensation Program Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 25, 2014, report from the 
Acting Assistant City Administrator). 

 
8. Subject:  Approval Of City Charter Findings For Alameda Park Groundwater 

Well Siting (540.10) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Find that the design proposed for the Alameda Park Well Relocation 

Project is compatible with the use and character of Alameda Park; and 
B. Make the following findings pursuant to City Charter Section 520:  The 

well relocation is compatible with and accessory to the purposes to which 
the property is devoted because:  A) a portion of the water supply 
developed by the well will be devoted to park irrigation and maintenance, 
thus rendering the well accessory to the park use; B) the findings made 
above pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code section 28.37.025 
demonstrate that the well location is compatible with park uses; C) the use 
of the well will be by agreement between the Parks and Recreation and 
Public Works Departments and fully regulated by the City; and D) 
permission for the well will be contingent upon the Parks and Recreation 
and Public Works Departments reaching an agreement to the satisfaction 
of the City Administrator on all relevant construction and use issues, 
including appropriate compensation for the use of the park land. 

 
(Cont’d) 



11/25/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

8. (Cont’d) 
 

Action:  Approved the recommendations (November 25, 2014, report from the 
Public Works Director). 
 

9. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of Santa Barbara Police Department 
Heating, Ventilation, And Air Conditioning Replacement Project (320.01) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with ACCO Engineered Systems in their low bid amount 

of $1,234,567 for construction of the Santa Barbara Police Department 
Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning Replacement Project, Bid No. 
3755; and 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve 
expenditures up to $185,000 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment. 

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Supervising Engineer Michael Wiltshire. 
 

Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract No. 25,037 (November 25, 
2014, report from the Public Works Director). 
 

10. Subject:  Water Main Replacement Program Funding (540.06) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council appropriate $1,500,000 from Water Fund 
Reserves to the Water Capital Fund to address the need for ongoing water 
distribution system maintenance and repair projects. 

 
Speakers: 

Members of the Public:  Phil Walker. 
 

Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 25, 2014, report from the 
Public Works Director). 
 

NOTICES 
 
11. The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 20, 2014, posted this agenda in the 

Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
12. Cancellation of the regular City Council meeting of December 2, 2014. 
 

This concluded the Consent Calendar. 
 



11/25/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Finance Committee Chair Dale Francisco reported that the Committee met to review 
financial statements for the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2015 as well as proposed 
adjustments to Fiscal Year 2015 appropriations and estimated revenues.  The 
Committee accepted the statements and approved the adjustments, and both items 
were also approved by the Council as part of this agenda’s Consent Calendar (Item 
No. 5). 
 
Councilmember Francisco left the meeting at 2:10 p.m. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
13. Subject: Casa Esperanza Review Of Operations (660.04) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council accept a report prepared by City and County of 
Santa Barbara staff based on a review of Casa Esperanza Homeless Shelter's 
operations, and release the remaining contingency funds pursuant to Agreement 
Number 24,952. 

 
Documents: 

- November 25, 2014, report from the Community Development Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Community Development Business Manager Sue Gray. 
- Casa Esperanza Homeless Shelter:  Interim Executive Director Joseph 

Tumbler, Executive/Managing Director Jessica Wishan. 
- Members of the Public:  Jason Colbert, Jose Arturo Gallegos, Dorothy. 

 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Murillo/Hart to approve the recommendation. 
Vote: 

Unanimous voice vote (Absent:  Councilmember Francisco). 
 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
 
14. Subject:  Public Meeting On The Proposed Modification Of 2011-2015 Santa 

Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District (290.00) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a public meeting to hear comments on the 
proposed modification of the 2011-2015 Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism 
Business Improvement District for the District to expire on December 31, 2014. 

 
(Cont’d) 



11/25/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

14. (Cont’d) 
 

Documents: 
- November 25, 2014, report from the Acting Assistant City Administrator. 
- Affidavit of Publication. 

 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Treasury Manager Genie Wilson. 
- Civitas (Consultant to City):  Project Manager Cheryl Cuming. 

 
Public Comment was opened and closed at 3:07 p.m.  No one wished to speak. 

 
A public hearing will be held on December 16, 2014, to complete the process to 
modify the 2011-2015 Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business 
Improvement District. 

 
Councilmember Francisco returned to the meeting at 3:08 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
15. Subject:  Appeal Of Single Family Design Board Denial Of A Residence On 

Lot 2 Of The 3626 San Remo Drive Subdivision  (640.07) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council uphold the appeal of Jarrett Gorin, agent on 
behalf of Capital Pacific Development Group, granting Project Design Approval 
for a new single-family residence on a vacant lot at 3626 San Remo Drive. 

 
Councilmember Murillo stated she would not participate in this item due to a 
conflict of interest related to a family member’s ownership of property in close 
proximity to the subject property; she left the meeting at 3:08 p.m. 

 
Documents: 

- November 25, 2014, report from the Community Development Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
- Letters and e-mails supporting the appeal and proposed project: 

- November 18, 2014, from Henry Lenny/Robert Adams/ Detty Peikert. 
- November 20, 2014, from Patricia Larkins, Jeff Venegas. 
- November 21, 2014, from Tom Ochsner, Steve Fisher, Lorie Bartron. 

- Letters and e-mails opposing the proposed project: 
- October 4, 2014, from Michael Ward. 
- October 7, 2014, from Bob Feitt, Sharon Samski, Margaret C. Cornett, 

June Gill. 
- November 20, 2014, from Joan and Bob Jacobs, Peter and Shirley 

Edwards, Robert Westwick. 
- November 25, 2014, from John Steen. 
 

(Cont’d) 



11/25/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

15. (Cont’d) 
 

Documents (Cont’d): 
- November 24, 2014, letter from the Santa Barbara Association of 

Realtors. 
 

Public Comment Opened: 
3:09 p.m. 
 

Speakers: 
- Staff:  Project Planner Daniel Gullett, City Attorney Ariel Calonne. 
- Appellant/Applicant:  Jarrett Gorin, Henry Lenny. 
- Members of the Public:  Peter Edwards, Shirley Edwards, Bob Westwick, 

John Steen, Molly Steen, Edward de Vicente. 
 

Public Comment Closed: 
4:24 p.m. 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers Hotchkiss/Hart to uphold the appeal, with a condition 
directing the Single Family Design Board, in its consideration of the project 
for final approval, to pay particular attention to the landscaping for the 
western edge of the subject property to provide screening for the 
neighborhood. 

Vote: 
Majority voice vote (Noes:  Councilmember White; Absent:  
Councilmember Murillo). 

 
Councilmember Murillo returned to the meeting at 4:59 p.m. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
 - Councilmember Hart commented on his attendance at the “State of the Schools” 

breakfast sponsored by the Santa Barbara Unified School District and at a recent 
Fire and Police Commission meeting. 

 - Councilmember Murillo reported on her attendance at: 1) a Restorative Court 
ceremony celebrating accomplishments of the City’s Restorative Policing 
Program; and 2) a meeting of the Santa Barbara City College Task Force about 
issues with the college’s surrounding neighborhood. 

 - Councilmember Hotchkiss reported on his attendance at meetings of the Airport 
and Harbor Commissions. 

 - Councilmember White commented on recent meetings of the Council committees 
working on matters related to infrastructure and sustainability. 

 
  



11/25/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

RECESS 
 
Mayor Schneider recessed the meeting at 5:04 p.m. in order for the Council to 
reconvene in closed session for Agenda Item Nos. 16 and 17.  She stated that no 
reportable action is anticipated. 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 
 
16. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney – Pending Litigation  (160.03) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Joseph M. 
Hicks v. City of Santa Barbara, et al., USDC Case No. CV 13-9016 FMO(RZx). 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 

 
Documents: 

November 25, 2014, report from the City Attorney. 
 

Time: 
5:06 p.m. – 5:14 p.m. 

 
No report made. 
 

17. Subject: Conference With City Attorney - Pending Litigation (160.03) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Camille 
Carter v. City of Santa Barbara, et al., SBSC Case No. 1438672. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 

 
Documents: 

November 25, 2014, report from the City Attorney. 
 

Time: 
5:14 p.m. – 5:20 p.m. 
 

No report made. 
 
  



11/25/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 5:20 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



 1 DEC 16 2014 #2 
210.01 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA ADDING SECTION 5.04.735 OF THE SANTA 
BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE TO CREATE A BUSINESS TAX 
EXEMPTION FOR ARTISTS EARNING LESS THAN $5,000 IN 
ANNUAL GROSS RECEIPTS 

 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.     Section 5.04.735 of Chapter 4 of Title 5 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code is added to read as follows: 
 
5.04.735 Artists Tax Exemption. 
  

Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, Artists, as the term is used in 
section 5.04.420, shall not be taxed if their annual gross receipts are less than five 
thousand dollars ($5,000.00).  Artists with gross annual receipts of five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00) or more shall be taxed in accordance with section 5.04.390 or 5.04.420, as 
applicable.  
 
 SECTION 2.  CEQA.  This ordinance is not subject to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15060(c)(2) of the CEQA 
Guidelines (Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations) because the activity 
will not result in a direct  or  reasonable  foreseeable  indirect  physical  change  in  the  
environment,  and Section 15060(c)(3) because the activity is not a project as defined in 
Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines because it has no potential for resulting in 
physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly. 
 
 



 1 DEC 16 2014 #3 
640.09 

 
ORDINANCE NO.  ________ 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING 
SECTION 28.22.030 OF CHAPTER 28.22 OF 
TITLE 28 OF THE SANTA BARBARA 
MUNICIPAL CODE. 

 
WHEREAS, the HRC-2 (Hotel and Related Commerce - 2) Zone was adopted by the 
City Council in 1983 allowing residential uses within the area bounded by Helena 
Avenue on the west, the existing railroad right-of-way on the south, the Garden Street 
extension on the east and Highway 101 on the north. 
 
WHEREAS, in 2005 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 5343 rezoning a portion of 
the HRC-2 Zone to the OC (Ocean Commercial) Zone. 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 5343 was not intended to affect the real property within the 
Cabrillo Plaza Specific Plan (SP-2). 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 5343 unintentionally deleted a provision from Section 
28.22.030 of the Municipal Code which allowed residential uses within a portion of the 
HRC-2 Zone that is located within Area A of the Cabrillo Plaza Specific Plan. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to correct the unintended deletion of the residential 
use allowance within Area A of the Cabrillo Plaza Specific Plan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The Environmental Analyst has determined that the project is exempt from 
further environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
Guidelines Section 15305.  The City’s adopted list of projects that are consistent with 
this exemption class include: 

• Creation of minor new, and minor amendments to existing land use plans, 
ordinances, guidelines, regulations and/or development standards which do not 
result in any changes in land use density and which have no potential for 
significant environmental effects. 

• Minor Zoning Ordinance amendments that do not significantly change plan uses 
in an area. 

The Ordinance Amendment is limited to re-instituting residential use as an allowed use 
on a property located within Area A of the Cabrillo Plaza Specific Plan.  The Ordinance 
Amendment would not affect or change adopted land use designations or densities 
identified in the General Plan or Local Coastal Plan, or the Cabrillo Plaza Specific Plan.  
Therefore, it would not result in significant environmental effects because these 
potential effects have already been considered as part of prior land use decisions. 



2 

SECTION 2.  Section 28.22.030 of Chapter 28.22 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
28.22.030 Land Uses Permitted. 
 The following land uses are allowed in the HRC zones indicated: 
 A. HRC-1 ZONE: 
  Hotels, motels and tourist courts, including related recreational, conference 
center and other auxiliary uses primarily for use by hotel guests and as permitted in 
Section 28.21.030.B.2 of this code.  In addition, restaurants, including those with 
entertainment facilities used in conjunction with the restaurant, are allowed. 
 B. HRC-2 ZONE: 
  1. General.  Any use permitted in the HRC-1 Zone and subject to the restrictions 
and limitations contained therein. 
  2. Specific.  Any of the following uses which are primarily visitor-serving or of a 
commercial recreational nature specific to the Coastal Zone are allowed: 
   a. Bicycle, roller skating, moped, dive gear and other recreational equipment 
rental stores. 
   b. Stores which sell liquor, groceries and food, which do not exceed 2,500 
sq. ft. in gross floor area. 
   c. Specialty and gift shops. 
   d. Art galleries. 
   e. Bait and tackle shops, sales of boats, marine supplies and related 
equipment. 
   f. Other visitor-serving or commercial recreational uses deemed appropriate 
by the Planning Commission. 
  3. General Office Use.  The second and third floors of commercial buildings are 
allowed to be used for general office uses upon issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.  
A Conditional Use Permit may be granted by the Planning Commission or City Council 
on appeal for such uses in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 28.94 of this 
Code, subject to the following additional findings: 
   a. The use is compatible with visitor-serving uses; 
   b. Visitor-serving uses remain the primary use of the building; and 
   c. Non-visitor-serving uses shall not exceed fifty (50) percent of the total 
square footage of the building. 
  4. Restriction on Residential Use.  Residential use is prohibited in the HRC-2 
Zone except in the following areas: 
   a. The  area bounded by Cabrillo Boulevard on the southeast, Los Patos 
Way on the southwest and the existing railroad right-of-way on the north. 
   b. The area identified as Area A of the Cabrillo Plaza Specific Plan as 
specified in Resolution No. 83-155. 
Any use permitted in the R-3 Zone is allowed in these areas subject to the restrictions 
and limitations contained therein. 
  5. Special Treatment Area.  The following additional restrictions shall apply in 
the area bounded by Cabrillo Boulevard on the southeast, Los Patos Way on the 
southwest and the existing railroad right-of-way on the north, due to concerns about 
protection of the sensitive habitat character and aesthetics of the Andree Clark Bird 



3 

Refuge: 
   a. High Intensity Uses.  The following high-intensity uses shall be prohibited: 
    i. fast food restaurants 
    ii. stores which sell liquor, groceries and food, except that off-site sale 
of beer and wine and picnic items may be allowed only when incidental to and related to 
the primary use of the establishment. 
    iii. automobile service station. 
   b. Front Setback.  There shall be a front setback of not less than: 
    i. Ten (10) feet for one-story buildings that do not exceed fifteen (15) 
feet in height; and 
    ii. one hundred (100) feet for the second-story portion of any building 
that exceeds fifteen (15) feet in height. 
 c. Building Height.  Three-story buildings and buildings in excess of thirty 
(30) feet in height shall be prohibited.   



Agenda Item No.  4 
File Code No.  260.02 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Treasury Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: November 2014 Investment Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council accept the November 2014 Investment Report. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The attached investment report includes Investment Activity, Interest Revenue, a 
Summary of Cash and Investments, and Investment Portfolio detail as of November 30, 
2014.   
 
ATTACHMENT: November 2014 Investment Report 
 
PREPARED BY: Genie Wilson, Treasury Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 
 
 
 



 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INVESTMENT INCOME

PURCHASES OR DEPOSITS POOLED INVESTMENTS

 11/26 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 2,000,000$         Interest Earned on Investments 160,540$              

11/26 Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 2,000,000           Amortization (10,426)

Total 4,000,000$         Total 150,113$              

SALES, MATURITIES, CALLS OR WITHDRAWALS

 11/17 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) - Maturity (2,000,000)$       

11/26 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) - Call (1,000,000)         

11/28 Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) - Call (2,000,000)         

Total (5,000,000)$       

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Activity and Interest Report

November 30, 2014

ACTIVITY TOTAL (1,000,000)$       INCOME TOTAL 150,113$              

A
ttachm

ent

1

ATTACHMENT



ENDING BALANCE AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2014

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

Union Bank Checking Account 19,385,508$         0.400% 11.41% 1
State of California LAIF 22,000,000 0.261% 12.95% 1
Certificates of Deposit 9,000,000 1.311% 5.30% 814
Treasury Securities 10,190,210 0.458% 6.00% 517
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 91,992,985 1.364% 54.14% 1,070
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 12,023,880 1.910% 7.08% 762

164,592,583         1.084% 96.86% 730

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,336,967 4.195% 3.14% 5,355
Totals and Averages 169,929,550$       1.182% 100.00% 876

Total Cash and Investments 169,929,550$       
 

  
NET CASH AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY FOR NOVEMBER 2014 219,958$                  

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Summary of Cash and Investments

November 30, 2014

NET CASH AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY FOR NOVEMBER 2014 219,958$                  
 

 
ENDING BALANCE AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2014

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

MUFG Union Bank NA Checking Account 20,615,892$         0.400% 12.12% 1 (1)

State of California LAIF 22,000,000 0.261% 12.93% 1 (2)

Certificates of Deposit 9,000,000 1.311% 5.29% 784
Treasury Securities 10,179,889 0.458% 5.98% 487
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 90,994,313 1.371% 53.48% 1,080
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 12,022,448 1.910% 7.07% 732

164,812,541         1.081% 96.86% 723

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,336,967 4.195% 3.14% 5,325
Totals and Averages 170,149,508$       1.179% 100.00% 867

Total Cash and Investments 170,149,508$       
Note:   
(1) Interest earnings allowance is provided at the rate of 0.400% by MUFG Union Bank, N.A. to help offset banking fees. 

(2) The average life of the LAIF portfolio as of November 30, 2014 is 191 days.  

2



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VAL UE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND - - - - 0.261 0.261 22,000,000.00 22,000,000.00 22,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, LAIF      22,000,000.00 22,000,000.00 22,000,000.00 0.00

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

AMERICAN EXPRESS BANK FSB 10/23/14 10/23/19 - - 2.200 2.200 250,000.00 250,000.00 248,672.50 (1,327.50) FDIC Certificate 35328

CAPITAL ONE BANK USA NA 10/29/14 10/29/19 - - 1.900 1.900 250,000.00 250,000.00 248,572.50 (1,427.50) FDIC Certificate 33954

GE CAPITAL BANK 10/17/14 10/17/19 - - 2.000 2.000 250,000.00 250,000.00 248,640.00 (1,360.00) FDIC Certificate 33778

GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA 10/29/14 10/29/19 - - 2.150 2.150 250,000.00 250,000.00 248,582.50 (1,417.50) FDIC Certificate 33124

MONTECITO BANK & TRUST 11/18/13 11/18/15 - - 0.600 0.600 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

UNION BANK 08/31/12 08/31/15 - - 1.230 1.247 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

UNION BANK 08/31/12 08/31/17 - - 1.490 1.511 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, Certificates of deposit     9,000,000.00 9,000,000.00 8,994,467.50 (5,532.50)

TREASURY SECURITIES - COUPON

U S TREASURY NOTE 10/25/12 03/15/15 Aaa AA+ 0.375 0.342 2,000,000.00 2,000,186.57 2,001,720.00 1,533.43  

U S TREASURY NOTE 10/25/12 10/31/15 Aaa AA+ 1.250 0.397 2,000,000.00 2,015,499.83 2,020,460.00 4,960.17  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 05/15/16 Aaa AA+ 5.125 0.442 2,000,000.00 2,135,088.34 2,141,100.00 6,011.66  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 08/31/16 Aaa AA+ 1.000 0.502 2,000,000.00 2,017,235.86 2,021,400.00 4,164.14  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 02/28/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 0.607 2,000,000.00 2,011,877.98 2,012,500.00 622.02  

     Subtotal, Treasury Securities 10,000,000.00 10,179,888.58 10,197,180.00 17,291.42

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

November 30, 2014

FEDERAL AGENCY ISSUES - COUPON  
FED AGRICULTURAL MTG CORP 10/03/13 10/03/18 - - 1.720 1.720 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,027,420.00 27,420.00  

FED AGRICULTURAL MTG CORP 12/12/13 12/12/18 - - 1.705 1.705 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,040,860.00 40,860.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 07/09/14 07/09/18 Aaa AA+ 1.470 1.470 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,004,900.00 4,900.00 Callable 07/09/15, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 08/15/12 08/15/17 Aaa AA+ 0.980 0.980 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,997,060.00 (2,940.00) Callable, continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 09/18/13 09/18/17 Aaa AA+ 1.550 1.550 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,033,420.00 33,420.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/16/11 02/16/16 Aaa AA+ 2.570 2.570 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,054,200.00 54,200.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 07/17/13 07/17/17 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,022,340.00 22,340.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/13/13 09/14/18 Aaa AA+ 2.000 1.910 2,000,000.00 2,006,463.09 2,050,560.00 44,096.91  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/17/14 04/17/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,840.00 1,840.00 Callable, 04/17/15 once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 01/16/13 01/16/18 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,976,320.00 (23,680.00) Callable 01/16/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 01/17/14 04/17/18 Aaa AA+ 1.480 1.480 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,010,420.00 10,420.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/30/14 09/30/19 Aaa AA+ 2.100 2.100 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,002,840.00 2,840.00 Callable 12/30/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/26/14 06/26/19 Aaa AA+ 1.250 2.062 2,000,000.00 1,999,444.44 2,001,620.00 2,175.56 SU 1.25%-6% Call 12/26/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 11/26/14 11/26/19 Aaa AA+ 1.500 2.102 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,006,500.00 6,500.00 SU 1.5%-5% Call 05/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/27/13 06/27/18 Aaa AA+ 1.250 1.493 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,360.00 1,360.00 SU 1.125%-2.5% Call 12/27/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/15/14 04/15/19 Aaa AA+ 2.070 2.070 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,100.00 100.00 Callable, continuous

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 05/22/14 05/22/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,998,700.00 (1,300.00) Callable, continuous

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 02/09/11 01/29/15 Aaa AA+ 1.750 1.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,005,240.00 5,240.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/15/11 05/27/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,018,020.00 18,020.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 12/16/13 12/14/18 Aaa AA+ 1.750 1.650 2,000,000.00 2,007,709.47 2,025,960.00 18,250.53  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/18/14 06/09/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.003 2,000,000.00 1,999,830.44 2,007,420.00 7,589.56  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 10/22/14 11/18/16 Aaa AA+ 0.750 0.500 2,000,000.00 2,009,742.57 2,003,600.00 (6,142.57)  

3



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VAL UE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

November 30, 2014

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/26/13 06/26/18 Aaa AA+ 1.400 1.400 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,520.00 520.00 Callable 12/26/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 12/18/13 12/18/18 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.839 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,670.00 670.00 SU 1.5%-2.75% Call 12/18/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 12/31/13 12/31/18 Aaa AA+ 1.825 1.825 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,001,400.00 1,400.00 Callable 12/31/14, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 04/23/12 04/17/15 Aaa AA+ 0.500 0.534 2,000,000.00 1,999,744.21 2,002,920.00 3,175.79  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/30/14 06/30/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,005,240.00 5,240.00 Callable 06/30/15, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 09/12/12 09/12/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,993,660.00 (6,340.00) Callable 12/12/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 01/16/13 01/16/18 Aaa AA+ 1.050 1.050 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,997,920.00 (2,080.00) Callable 01/16/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 11/26/14 11/26/19 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,005,300.00 5,300.00 Callable 02/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/26/13 06/26/18 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.500 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,620.00 1,620.00 Callable 12/26/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 11/20/13 09/29/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.030 1,000,000.00 999,164.49 1,000,210.00 1,045.51  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 01/30/13 01/30/18 Aaa AA+ 1.030 1.030 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,982,690.00 (17,310.00) Callable 01/30/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/12/12 12/12/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,989,080.00 (10,920.00) Callable 12/12/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 06/19/13 12/19/16 Aaa AA+ 0.750 0.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,560.00 560.00 Callable 12/19/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/15/13 10/26/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 1.062 2,000,000.00 1,989,395.57 1,994,440.00 5,044.43  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/11/13 11/27/18 Aaa AA+ 1.625 1.606 2,000,000.00 2,001,447.26 2,018,620.00 17,172.74  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/08/12 11/08/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,990,840.00 (9,160.00) Callable 02/08/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/08/12 11/08/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,990,840.00 (9,160.00) Callable 02/08/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/26/12 12/26/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,986,640.00 (13,360.00) Callable 12/26/14, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 09/21/10 09/21/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,029,660.00 29,660.00  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/10/10 10/26/15 Aaa AA+ 1.625 2.067 2,000,000.00 1,992,441.34 2,025,140.00 32,698.66  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 02/05/13 02/05/18 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,987,320.00 (12,680.00) Callable 02/05/15, then qtrlyFEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 02/05/13 02/05/18 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,987,320.00 (12,680.00) Callable 02/05/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/20/13 10/26/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 1.070 2,000,000.00 1,988,930.08 1,994,440.00 5,509.92  

     Subtotal, Federal Agencies 91,000,000.00 90,994,312.96 91,290,430.00 296,117.04
 

CORPORATE/MEDIUM TERM NOTES

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN 12/15/10 12/15/15 Aa2 AA 2.450 2.530 2,000,000.00 1,998,441.67 2,042,080.00 43,638.33  

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC 11/29/13 02/09/18 Aa2 AA 1.550 1.550 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,007,340.00 7,340.00  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 11/10/10 11/09/15 A1 AA+ 2.250 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,034,280.00 34,280.00  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 01/14/14 01/14/19 A1 AA+ 2.300 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,003,872.28 2,043,340.00 39,467.72  

PROCTOR & GAMBLE 09/20/11 11/15/15 Aa3 AA- 1.800 1.085 2,000,000.00 2,013,322.81 2,028,440.00 15,117.19  

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 09/26/11 09/15/16 Aa3 AA- 2.000 1.800 2,000,000.00 2,006,810.78 2,044,260.00 37,449.22  

     Subtotal, Corporate Securities 12,000,000.00 12,022,447.54 12,199,740.00 177,292.46

SB AIRPORT PROMISSORY NOTE (LT)

SANTA BARBARA AIRPORT 07/14/09 06/30/29 - - 3.500 4.195 5,336,966.90 5,336,966.90 5,336,966.90 0.00  

     Subtotal, SBA Note 5,336,966.90 5,336,966.90 5,336,966.90 0.00

CHECKING ACCOUNT

MUFG UNION BANK NA CHKNG ACCNT - - - - 0.400 0.400 20,615,892.22 20,615,892.22 20,615,892.22 0.00  

     Subtotal, Checking Account 20,615,892.22 20,615,892.22 20,615,892.22 0.00

TOTALS 169,952,859.12 170,149,508.20 170,634,676.62 485,168.42

Market values have been obtained from the City's safekeeping agent, MUFG Union Bank NA - The Private Bank (UBTPB). UBTPB uses Interactive Data Pricing Service, Bloomberg and DTC.

4



Agenda Item No.  5 

File Code No.  250.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements For The Four 

Months Ended October 31, 2014 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements for the Four 
Months Ended October 31, 2014. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The interim financial statements for the four months ended October 31, 2014 (33.3% of 
the fiscal year) are attached.  The interim financial statements include budgetary activity 
in comparison to actual activity for the General Fund, Enterprise Funds, Internal Service 
Funds, and select Special Revenue Funds. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Interim Financial Statements for the Four Months Ended October 

31, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT









































Agenda Item No.  6 
 

File Code No.  540.10 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of The Alameda Park Well Relocation 

Project – Infrastructure And Site Restoration 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Reject the apparent low bid for construction from Aguilera Brothers Construction, 

Inc., as non-responsive for the Alameda Park Well Relocation Project – 
Infrastructure and Site Restoration; and 

B. Award a contract with Brough Construction, Inc., in their lowest responsive bid 
amount of $180,855 for construction of the Alameda Park Well Relocation Project 
– Infrastructure and Site Restoration, Bid No. 3728; and authorize the Public 
Works Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $18,100 
to cover any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for extra 
work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities 
measured for payment. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Alameda Park Well (Well) was constructed in 1990 and draws water from Storage 
Unit 1 in the Downtown area. The City relies on this Well as one of the many potable 
water sources meeting the needs of its customers. In the last months of 2013, corrosion 
of the Well component led to the well no longer being viable for water production.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work consists of the installation of connective piping and electrical conduit for the 
relocated Well and restoration of the site post construction. The work includes 
replacement of removed trees, installation and removal of tree protection measures, 
along with landscaping and restoration of all construction impacted areas. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Alameda Park Well Relocation Project – Infrastructure 
And Site Restoration  
December 16, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

On November 25, 2014, Council approved the City Charter Findings for the Well site, 
which required that an agreement be in place prior to the beginning of construction 
between the Parks and Recreation and Public Works Departments for the use of 
parkland.  
 
BID REJECTION 
 
The apparent low bid received from Aguilera Brothers Construction, Inc. is non-
responsive for lack of compliance with Section A2.10 Qualification of Bidders, in 
reference to the three years experience requirement. Aguilera Brothers submitted two-
years of stated experience, referencing only two previous completed projects. Neither 
reference represents the full character of work experience as  required. 
 
The bid submitted by Brough Construction, Inc. is the lowest responsive bid. 
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of (number) bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Aguilera Brothers Const. Inc. 

Santa Paula, CA 
 

*$161,115 

2. Brough Construction, Inc. 
Arroyo Grande, CA 

 

$180,855 

3. Lash Construction, Inc. 
Santa Barbara, CA 

 

$191,111 

4. Sansone Company, Inc. 
San Luis Obispo, CA 

 

$202,896 

*Bid rejected as non-responsive 
 
The low bid of $180,855, submitted by Brough Construction, Inc., is an acceptable bid 
that is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications. The change 
order funding recommendation of $18,100, or 10 percent, is typical for this type of work 
and size of project.  
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Alameda Park Well Relocation Project – Infrastructure 
And Site Restoration  
December 16, 2014 
Page 3 
 

 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH 
 
There are multiple methods of community outreach being performed during the 
construction phase of this project. Staff sent out mailers to all residents on adjacent 
blocks to the construction site on November 6, 2014. Closure signs will be posted two to 
three weeks ahead of construction to alert residents, homeowners, and patrons of the 
park of the pending work. During construction, a large informational construction sign 
will be placed at the site.  
 
FUNDING  
 
This project is funded by the Drought Fund. There are sufficient appropriated funds in 
the Drought Fund to cover the cost of this project. 
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Brough Const., Inc. $180,855 $18,100 $198,955 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $198,955 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Alameda Park Well Relocation Project – Infrastructure 
And Site Restoration  
December 16, 2014 
Page 4 
 

 

 
The following summarizes all project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

 Drilling * Infrastructure Total 
Design (by Contract)   $89,836 
City Staff Costs   $143,404 

 Subtotal   $233,240 
Construction Contract   $1,094,725 $180,855 $1,275,580 
Construction Change Order Allowance $110,000 $18,100 $128,100 

Subtotal $1,204,725 $198,955
 

$1,403,680 

Other Construction Costs (testing, etc.)  $25,000 $5,000 $30,000 
Construction Management/Inspection (by 
Contract)  

$104,665 $30,000 $134,665 

Construction Management/Inspection (by 
City Staff) ** 

$53,934 $35,956 $89,890 

 Subtotal $183,599 $70,956 $254,555 
TOTAL PROJECT COST   $1,891,475 

 
* Awarded as a separate project on December 9, 2014. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
The City relies on groundwater as one the many potable water sources meeting the 
needs of its customers. The Well provides one of the more substantial production 
capacities compared to the other wells within the City.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Civil Engineer/AF/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of Voluntario Street Curb Cuts Project  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc., in their low bid amount of 
$210,890 for construction of the Voluntario Street Curb Cuts Project, Bid No. 3739, and 
authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures 
up to $21,089 to cover any cost increases that may result from contract change orders 
for extra work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities 
measured for payment. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The Voluntario Street Curb Cuts Project (Project) consists of constructing a total of 
eighteen new sidewalk access ramps at six intersections along Voluntario Street 
between East De La Guerra and Haley Streets (see the attached map). Fourteen of the 
new access ramps are located within a CDBG-eligible census tract, while four of the 
access ramps are outside, but immediately adjacent to the CDBG-eligible boundary and 
will complete the Voluntario Street corridor.  
 
The proposed access ramps are located within three blocks of both Santa Barbara High 
School and Santa Barbara Junior High, and two blocks from the Eastside’s commercial 
corridor along Milpas Street. Voluntario Street is also a main neighborhood street for 
travel to and from the Franklin Neighborhood Center, Eastside Library, and Adelante 
and Franklin Elementary Schools. Once these ramps are constructed, vulnerable users 
(i.e. disabled, elderly, and pedestrians with strollers) will no longer be forced to walk into 
Voluntario Street until there is a driveway or an access ramp where they can safely 
navigate to the sidewalk. The access ramps will be constructed in accordance with Title 
II of the Americans with Disabilities Act and per City Standard Details. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of Voluntario Street Curb Cuts Project 
December 16, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of two bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Lash Construction, Inc. 

Santa Barbara, CA 
 

$210,890.00 

2. Granite Construction 
Santa Barbara, CA  

$284,995.00 

  
The low bid of $210,890 submitted by Lash Construction, Inc. is an acceptable bid that 
is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $21,089 or 10 percent is typical for this 
type of work and size of project.   
 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH 
 
The access ramps being constructed with this Project were requested by the Eastside 
community as part of the Council-adopted Eastside Neighborhood Transportation 
Management Plan (NTMP) to improve traffic, bicyclist, and pedestrian safety in the 
neighborhood. The Eastside neighborhood includes avid walkers, and it is important to 
provide accessible paths of travel. Although 2010 Census Data does not include 
disability information at the census tract level, approximately eight percent of the 
population is less than five years of age (stroller bound) and seven percent of the 
population is 65 years old and greater within the census tract where the proposed 
access ramps are located. Additionally, a large school-aged population lives in the 
Eastside neighborhood, with19 percent of the residents within the census tract being 
school-aged. 
 
In November 2013, the Neighborhood Advisory Committee and Access Advisory 
Committee recommended that Public Works staff submit a Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) grant application for the access ramps along Voluntario Street. The 
Community Development and Human Service Committee reviewed the grant application 
in February 2014, and recommended that City Council approve CDBG funding for the 
Project’s construction costs.  On March 25, 2014, City Council approved the $140,000 
CDBG funding request for the access ramps.  
 
In January 2015, staff will notify the property owners and residents located near the 
Project locations of the construction via mailers. Prior to construction, the contractor will 
be responsible for the final notice via door hangers 72 hours prior to construction. 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of Voluntario Street Curb Cuts Project 
December 16, 2014 
Page 3 
 

 

 
FUNDING 
 
This Project is funded by CDBG funds and the Streets Capital Fund. The CDBG amount 
of $140,000 will fund the construction of the 14 access ramps located within the CDBG-
eligible census tract. The Streets Capital Fund will be used to cover the remaining 
Project costs and construction of the four access ramps that are located outside, but 
immediately adjacent to, the CDBG-eligible boundary. There are sufficient funds in the 
CDBG Fund and Streets Capital Fund to cover the cost of this Project. 
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Lash Construction, Inc. $210,890 $21,089 $231,979 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $231,979 
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 

  

 

 
CDBG 
Share 

City 
Share 

Total 

City Staff Costs - Survey $0 $10,000 $10,000 
City Staff Costs - Design $0 $15,000 $15,000 

 Subtotal $0 $25,000 $25,000 
Construction Contract $140,000 $70,890 $210,890 
Construction Change Order Allowance $0 $21,089 $21,089 

Subtotal $140,000 $91,979 $231,979
 

Construction Management/Inspection 
(by City Staff) 

$0 $35,000 $35,000 

 Subtotal $0 $35,000 $35,000 
TOTAL PROJECT COST $140,000 $151,979 $291,979 

 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
The Project will improve safety and accessibility for pedestrians within the CDBG 
eligible census tracts and will contribute to the City’s sustainability goals by encouraging 
more people to walk, reducing energy consumption and air pollution. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of Voluntario Street Curb Cuts Project 
December 16, 2014 
Page 4 
 

 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): Voluntario Street Sidewalk Access Ramp Project Location 

Map  
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/LY/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Can
on P

erd
id

o S
tr

eet 

Highway 101 

M
ilpas Street 

Voluntario Street 

Salinas Street 

CDBG Eligible Census Tracts 

Census Tract 8.04 

Census Tract 9 

Census Tract 8.01 

Attachment 8:  Project Site Map and Area Benefit Analysis 
Attachment to Question 13A

Attachment 1

lyanez
Oval

lyanez
Rectangle

lyanez
Oval

lyanez
Oval

sking
Text Box
ATTACHMENT



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Stormwater 

Master Plan 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract, subject to approval as to form by the City Attorney, with CDM Smith 
in the amount of $134,728 for design services of the El Estero Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Stormwater Master Plan, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $13,472 for extra services of CDM Smith that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant (El Estero) has several current and 
upcoming capital improvement projects that must comply with the City’s Storm Water 
Management Plan (SWMP) and municipal code, as well as California stormwater 
regulations.   
 
A Storm Water Assessment Report was prepared by CDM Smith (CDM) as part of their 
work on the Tertiary Filtration Replacement Project.  The primary goal of the 
Assessment Report was to quantify existing and potential changes to stormwater flows 
as a result of the proposed capital improvement project.  The Assessment also outlined 
proposed stormwater improvements to address both the quantity and quality of 
stormwater at El Estero.  
 
A comprehensive stormwater implementation plan is now needed to provide a 
systematic stormwater program approach, which includes preliminary design solutions 
for El Estero to implement as future projects are constructed. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Stormwater Master Plan 
December 16, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work generally consists of developing the initial programmatic framework for 
implementation at El Estero, preparing a facility stormwater management plan, 
preliminary design report with drawings, and permitting support.  The Tertiary Filtration 
Replacement Project, currently in construction, and the Secondary Process 
Improvements Project, currently in final design, both have Coastal Development Permit 
requirements that must be met as a condition of approval.  The Storm Water Master 
Plan will be used to address these requirements. 
 
CONSULTANT ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with CDM in the amount of $134,728 for design and $13,472 for potential extra 
services, for a total amount of $148,200. CDM is experienced in this type of work and  
prepared the Assessment Report. 
 
FUNDING 
 
The following summarizes all estimated total Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 

Design (by Contract) $148,200
 

Other Design Costs - City staff  $22,000 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $170,200 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Wastewater Capital Fund to cover these 
costs.   
 
PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Civil Engineer/LA/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Final Design Of El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Secondary Process Improvements Project – Phase II 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 

contract with Brown and Caldwell in the amount of $788,683 for final design of 
the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondary Process Improvements 
Project – Phase II, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $78,868 for extra services of Brown and Caldwell that may 
result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and  

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Finding that the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondary 
Process Improvements Project is Substantially Complex and, Therefore, 
Requires a Construction Contract Retention of Ten Percent. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant (El Estero) has longstanding issues with its 
secondary treatment process.  Over the past few years, Brown and Caldwell (B&C), 
through a competitive process, was selected and awarded contracts to evaluate and 
develop recommendations to improve the secondary treatment process, prepare 
preliminary design reports (PDR) and, most recently, for Phase I final design services 
for the Secondary Process Improvements Project (Project).  A $20 million State 
Revolving Fund (SRF) loan has now been executed and will be used to finance design 
and construction of this Project. Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public 
Works Director to execute a City Professional Services contract with B&C for the Phase 
II final design services. 
 
Staff has evaluated the Project and believes it to be substantially complex.  Although 
the California Public Contract Code was amended in 2012 to limit retention from ten 
percent to five percent, if a project is deemed substantially complex by the governing 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Final Design Of The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondary 
Process Improvements Project – Phase II 
December 16, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

 

body, a higher amount may be retained.  To comply with the Public Contract Code, staff 
recommends that Council adopt a resolution deeming the Project substantially complex, 
and approve the increase of  retention to 10 percent.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
El Estero processes approximately 8 million gallons of wastewater each day.  El Estero 
was originally constructed in 1952; however, a majority of its current infrastructure was 
constructed in 1978 to meet 1972 Clean Water Act requirements.  Although subsequent 
capital improvements have been completed in past years, El Estero has longstanding 
issues with highly variable secondary effluent quality, operational inflexibility, energy 
inefficiency and secondary treatment capacity.   
 
On June 29, 2010, Council awarded a contract to B&C to prepare an Assessment 
Report to evaluate and develop recommendations to improve the secondary treatment 
process at El Estero.  B&C, working with staff, evaluated several alternative operational 
approaches for improving the secondary treatment process, which resulted in staff’s 
recommendation to pursue the Project.  
 
On October 11, 2011, Council awarded a contract to B&C to prepare a PDR for the 
Project, and subsequently awarded a contract for a second phase PDR on January 15, 
2013. Combined, these two PDRs form the basis for the design, which provides for 
refurbishment of the major air process equipment associated with the secondary 
treatment process aeration basins, and for the upgrades to the secondary clarifiers, 
including improvements to return-activated sludge pumping equipment and piping.  
These process improvements will improve and stabilize the secondary effluent quality 
and address El Estero’s long standing issues with operational inflexibility, energy 
efficiency and secondary treatment capacity.   
 
On September 9, 2014, Council awarded a contract to B&C for Phase I of the final 
design for the Project. At that time, the City had initiated an application for a $20 million 
SRF loan to finance design and construction of this Project, and anticipated an 
executed agreement with the State of California within a few months. The SRF 
agreement has now been executed, and staff is seeking approval for Final Design 
Phase II. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The final design work consists of modifications to El Estero’s secondary treatment 
process to a nitrification/denitrification system, upgrades to the existing aeration and 
secondary clarifier sludge withdrawal systems, and implementation of nitrate return to 
address odor control issues and clarifier performance issues.  This Project will address 
the longstanding issues with highly variable secondary effluent quality, operational 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Final Design Of The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondary 
Process Improvements Project – Phase II 
December 16, 2014 
Page 3 
 

 

 

inflexibility, energy inefficiency, and secondary treatment capacity. The 
nitrification/denitrification process will produce a more stable secondary effluent, create 
higher-quality process water for subsequent production of recycled water, and will yield 
a higher quality of treated effluent discharge into the Pacific Ocean. 
 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT RETENTION 
 
Contract retention is the withholding of a portion of payment that is due to a contractor 
on a Public Works project to ensure that there are sufficient funds to complete the 
project and pay any claims of non-payment by subcontractors against the general 
contractor.  The California Public Contract Code was amended in 2012 to limit retention 
from ten percent to five percent of the total construction contract price.  However, if a 
project is deemed substantially complex by the governing body, a higher amount may 
be retained. The finding must be made during a properly noticed and scheduled public 
hearing, prior to advertising for bids, and the bid documents must include the finding 
and designated retention amount. 
 
Staff has evaluated the Project and believes it to be substantially complex for the 
following reasons: 
 

• The Project construction cost is estimated to be approximately $17 million 
and is funded by an SRF Agreement; 

• The Project involves significant upgrades to the secondary treatment 
process within an operational wastewater treatment facility;   

• Construction requires coordination between multiple disciplines (including 
structural, mechanical, process, electrical, civil, and instrumentation); and 

• The Contractor must comply with Coastal Development Permit 
requirements.   

 
To comply with the Public Contract Code, staff recommends that Council adopt a 
resolution deeming the Project substantially complex, and approve the increase of  
retention to 10 percent.   
 
FUNDING 
 
The City has received a $20 million SRF loan to finance design and construction of this 
Project.  Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute 
a contract with B&C in the amount of $788,683 for preliminary design, and for $78,868 
for potential extra services, for a total amount of $867,551.   
 
B&C was selected as the most qualified firm through a competitive Request for 
Proposal process. Staff has reviewed the costs and the scope of work for the 
preliminary design and determined that both are appropriate for the size and complexity 
of the Project. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Final Design Of The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondary 
Process Improvements Project – Phase II 
December 16, 2014 
Page 4 
 

 

 

The following summarizes all estimated total Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 

Assessment Report (by Contract) – Completed $267,820 

Project Administration (by Staff) - Completed $40,646 

Subtotal $308,466 

Preliminary Design Report Phase 1 (by Contract) – Completed $398,886 

Preliminary Design Report Phase 2 (by Contract) – Completed $285,136 

Project Administration (by Staff) – Completed $63,471 

Environmental Review and Permitting - Completed $36,194 

Subtotal $783,687 

Final Design Phase I Design (by Contract) $610,508 

Final Design Phase II (by Contract) $867,551 

Project Administration (by Staff) $104,060 

Subtotal $1,582,119 

Estimated Construction Contract w/Change Order Allowance  $17,600,000 

Estimated Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract) $1,600,000 

Estimated Construction Support Services (by Contract) $640,000 

Estimated Project Administration (by Staff) $161,550 

Subtotal $20,001,550 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $22,675,822 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
These processes will improve water quality for both recycled water production and 
treated effluent discharge into the ocean. They will also provide for more energy 
efficient equipment at El Estero as the blowers, the number one energy demand for El 
Estero, will be updated to a more energy efficient model. 
 
PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Civil Engineer/LA/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA FINDING THAT THE EL ESTERO 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT SECONDARY 
PROCESS IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT IS 
SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLEX AND, THEREFORE, 
REQUIRES A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
RETENTION OF TEN PERCENT 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara (“City”) intends on competitively bidding 
and awarding a contract for the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Secondary Process Improvement Project (“Project”);  
 
WHEREAS, Public Contract Code Section 7201(b)(1) states that retention 
proceeds withheld from any payment by a public entity from the original 
contractor shall not exceed five percent of the payment; 
 
WHEREAS, Public Contract Code Section 7201(b)(4) states that the retention 
proceeds withheld from any payment by a public entity may exceed five percent 
on specific projects where the governing board approves a finding during a 
properly noticed and normally scheduled public hearing, and prior to advertising 
for bids, that a project is substantially complex and, therefore, requires a higher 
retention amount than five percent, and the public entity includes such findings 
and the actual retention amount in the bid documents; 
 
WHEREAS, on December 16, 2014, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 
7201, the City finds that the Project is substantially complex and requires a 
higher retention amount than five percent, based on the facts set forth in this 
Resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City hereby determines and finds that, since the Project is 
substantially complex, retention proceeds to be withheld from the general 
contractor shall not exceed ten percent of the contract amount.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct. 
 
SECTION 2. In accordance with the Public Contract Code Section 7201, the City 
hereby determines and finds that the Project is substantially complex based on 
the following facts: 
 

a. The Project construction cost is estimated to be approximately $16 million 
and is funded by a State Revolving Fund agreement; 



2 
 

b. The Project involves significant upgrades to the secondary treatment 
process within an operational wastewater treatment facility;   

c. Construction requires coordination between multiple disciplines (including 
structural, mechanical, process, electrical, civil and instrumentation); and 

d. The Contractor must comply with Coastal Development Permit 
requirements.   

 
SECTION 3. As the Project is determined and found to be substantially complex, 
the City hereby approves retention proceeds to be withheld from the general 
contractor in an amount not to exceed ten percent, and that the total retention 
proceeds to be withheld from the subcontractors by the general contractor shall 
not exceed ten percent. 
 
SECTION 4. The bid documents for the Project will include this Resolution, and 
will state that the retention proceeds to be withheld from the general contractor 
shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the contract amount. 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No. 10 
 

File Code No.  210.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  December 16, 2014 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers  
 
FROM:   Treasury Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Armored Car Transportation Services Agreement  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the Finance Director to negotiate and execute a one-year contract, 
in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, with Brinks Security Services to provide Armored 
Car Transportation services for the period of January 1, 2015, through December 31, 
2015, for an annual amount of $36,120. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
Armored car services have been provided by Brinks Security for a number of years and, 
Union Bank is currently paying for and waiving those fees for the armored car services 
provided to the City’s seven pick-up locations. However, the current agreement with 
Union Bank is set to expire on December 31, 2014 and the transportation fees will no 
longer be waived pursuant to the new agreement with Union Bank approved on 
November 25, 2014 and effective on January 1, 2015.  The current transportation fees 
for Brinks Security are $3,010 per month, or $36,120 per year. These fees have 
remained at this level for the past several years and were lower than another provider’s 
when staff compared pricing.  Brinks Security has proposed an annual contract at the 
current rates for continued armored car services. Staff is recommending continuing 
armored car services with Brinks Security for a period of one year and thereafter, staff 
will evaluate the fees and other service providers.   
In addition, the City uses courier services to transport utility billing payments to the UB 
lockbox location in Monterey Park. These payments are remitted to the local post office 
box in Santa Barbara and sent daily to Monterey Park for processing.  The current cost 
for courier services is $1,847 per month, or $22,166 per year. Staff recommends 
continuing with a courier service, however, staff will evaluate the costs provided by area 
courier service companies before moving forward with a new contract.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Armored Car Transportation Services Agreement  
December 16, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
Transportation costs for armored car services will be charged to the various City funds 
based on a cost allocation method that reflects services received by each fund.   An 
increase to appropriations will be brought to City Council in connection with the mid-
year report since these costs were not previously budgeted in the General Fund.  
Similarly, budget appropriations will be requested for other impacted funds for their 
proportionate share of the costs.   
 
              FY 2015   FY 2016 
  

  
General Fund 

 
All Other Funds 

 
Total 

 
Total 

  
        

  
Brinks Security Armored 
Car fees  $                 7,220  

 
 $             10,842  

 
 $           18,058 

 
 $       36,120  

                    

 
A copy of the Brinks Security agreement is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Genie Wilson, Treasury Manager  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  12 
 

File Code No.  280.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 

TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: Administration Division, Finance Department 

SUBJECT: Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (TEFRA) Hearing For 
Cottage Health Systems Debt Issuance 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Issuance of the California 
Statewide Communities Development Authority Revenue Bonds (Cottage Health 
System Obligated Group), Series 2015, in an Aggregate Principal Amount Not to 
Exceed $150,000,000 for the Purpose of Financing and Refinancing the Acquisition, 
Construction, Improvement, Equipping, Renovation, Rehabilitation and Remodeling of 
Certain Health and Support Facilities of Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital and Certain 
Other Matters Related Thereto.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The California Statewide Communities Development Authority (“Authority”) is a joint 
exercise of powers authority formed to assist local governments and non-profits with 
their financing needs. The City is a member of the Authority.   
 
The Authority is assisting Cottage Health Systems with a debt issuance in an amount 
not to exceed $150 million to refinance existing obligations and to finance additional 
improvements to Cottage Hospital. 
 
Under Internal Revenue Code, the governing body having jurisdiction over the area in 
which the facility financed by the bonds is located must: (1) conduct a public hearing 
and (2) approve the issuance of the debt.  Therefore, because the new bond financing 
will benefit the Cottage Hospital Project, which is located within the City of Santa 
Barbara, the City Council must hold a public hearing and adopt a resolution approving 
the debt issuance. Council has held numerous such TEFRA (Tax Equity and Fiscal 
Responsibility Act) hearings. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (TEFRA) Hearing For Cottage Health Systems 
Debt Issuance 
December 16, 2014 
Page 2 

 

It is important to understand that the City is in no way associated with the debt issuance 
and is not obligated to make debt service payments on the bonds.  The City Council 
must hold a public hearing in which interested persons are given an opportunity to be 
heard on all matters relative to the location, operation and financing of the project.  Staff 
recommends the City Council hold the public hearing and adopt the resolution 
approving the issuance of bonds by the Authority. 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Assistant City Administrator 

APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF THE 
CALIFORNIA STATEWIDE COMMUNITIES 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REVENUE BONDS 
(COTTAGE HEALTH SYSTEM OBLIGATED GROUP), 
SERIES 2015, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $150,000,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
FINANCING AND REFINANCING THE ACQUISITION, 
CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT EQUIPPING, 
RENOVATION, REHABILITATION AND REMODELING OF 
CERTAIN HEALTH AND SUPPORT FACILITIES OF 
SANTA BARBARA COTTAGE HOSPITAL AND CERTAIN 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 
WHEREAS, Santa Barbara Cottage Hospital (“SBCH” or the “Borrower”), an 

affiliate of Cottage Health System, both nonprofit public benefit corporations based in 
Santa Barbara, California, has requested that the California Statewide Communities 
Development Authority (the “Authority”) participate in the issuance of one or more 
series of revenue bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $150,000,000 
(the “Bonds”) for the financing and refinancing of the acquisition, construction, 
improvement, equipping, renovation, rehabilitation, and remodeling of certain health 
and support facilities owned or operated or to be owned and operated by SBCH 
(the “Facilities”) located within the City of Santa Barbara (the “City”);  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 
(the “Code”), the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority must be approved by the City 
because the Facilities are located within the territorial limits of the City;  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “Council”) is the elected legislative 
body of the City and is one of the applicable elected representatives required to 
approve the issuance of the Bonds under Section 147(f) of the Code;  

WHEREAS, the Authority has requested that the Council approve the issuance 
of the Bonds by the Authority in order to satisfy the public approval requirement of 
Section 147(f) of the Code and the requirements of Section 9 of the Amended and 
Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1988 (the 
“Agreement”), among certain local agencies, including the City;  

WHEREAS, the Authority is also requesting the City approve the issuance of any 
refunding bonds hereafter issued by the Authority for the purpose of refinancing the 
Bonds which financed the Facilities (the “Refunding Bonds”), but only in such cases 
where federal tax laws would not require additional consideration or approval by the 
City Council; and 



WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Code, the Council has, following 
notice duly given, held a public hearing regarding the issuance of the Bonds, and now 
desires to approve the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  The Council hereby approves the issuance of the Bonds and Refunding 
Bonds by the Authority.  It is the purpose and intent of the Council that this Resolution 
constitute approval of the issuance of the Bonds and Refunding Bonds by the Authority, 
for the purposes of (a) Section 147(f) of the Code by the applicable elected 
representative of the issuer of the Bonds and the governmental unit having jurisdiction 
over the area in which the Facilities are located, in accordance with said Section 147(f) 
and (b) Section 9 of the Agreement. 

SECTION 2.  The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and 
severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents 
which they deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comply 
with the terms and intent of this Resolution and the financing transaction approved 
hereby. 

SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 



Agenda Item No.  13 

File Code No.  640.09 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Request For Designation Of 400 Hitchcock Way (Tesla Motors, Inc.) 

As A Community Benefit Project  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council find the proposed development at 400 Hitchcock Way for Tesla Motors, 
Inc., a Community Benefit Project pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 
28.85.020.A.3 and allocate 8,700 square feet of nonresidential floor area to the project 
from the Community Benefit Project category. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As part of implementing the General Plan Update, on March 12, 2013 the City Council 
adopted the Nonresidential Growth Management Program (GMP) ordinance (SBMC 
Chapter 28.85). The GMP limits total new nonresidential growth to 1.35 million square 
feet over 20 years, of which 600,000 square feet is reserved for Community Benefit 
Projects. Three categories of development are included within the Community Benefit 
Project designation: Community Priority Projects; Economic Development Projects, and; 
Development Plan-New Automobile Sales Projects. The project applicant is requesting 
designation as a Development Plan-New Automobile Sales Project for purposes of 
allocating nonresidential floor area (see Attachment).  
 
Proposed Project 
The three-acre site at 400 Hitchcock Way is zoned E-3 (One-Family Residence)/P-D 
(Planned Development)/SD-2 (Special District), has been used as an auto dealership 
since the 1960s, and is currently occupied by Volvo/Buick/GMC. Structures on-site 
include an 8,377 square-foot showroom and approximately 17,433 square feet of 
storage and open bay structures.  
 
The applicant proposes to remodel the existing auto dealership showroom and enclose 
the open service bays to secure its electric automobile repair center. Enclosing the open 
bays creates 9,700 net square feet of new nonresidential floor area on the site. Since 
there have been no additions to the buildings since 1989, pursuant to SBMC 



Council Agenda Report 
Request For Designation Of 400 Hitchcock Way (Tesla Motors, Inc.) As A Community 
Benefit Project  
December 16, 2014 
Page 2 

 

§28.85.010 and §28.85.020, the first 1,000 square feet of new nonresidential floor area 
must be allocated from the Minor Addition category of the GMP. The remaining 8,700 
square feet would need to occur either through a Transfer of Existing Development 
Rights or designation as a Community Benefit Project.   
 
Community Benefit Project 
The applicant requests that City Council designate the proposal a Community Benefit 
Project. One specific category, Planned Development – New Automobile Sales Project, 
is defined as “a project within a Planned Development zone that proposes a project 
involving new automobile sales, rental and leasing…” The proposal involves 
improvements to a site within the Planned Development (PD) Zone and the tenant, 
Tesla Motors, Inc., intends to utilize the showroom for new automobile display and sales 
and operate an electric automobile repair and service center from the structures 
proposed to be enclosed. As described, the proposal qualifies as a Community Benefit 
Project. 
 
The requested square footage from the Community Benefit category represents 1.4% of 
the 600,000 square feet available for these types of projects over the next 20 years. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Letter from Suzanne Elledge Planning & Permitting Services,    

dated December 1, 2014 
  
PREPARED BY: Renee Brooke, AICP, Senior Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



rbrooke
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT









Agenda Item No.  16 

File Code No.  290.00 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

 
AGENDA DATE:  December 16, 2014 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing On The Proposed Modification Of The 2011-2015 

Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council: 
 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara Modifying the Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement 
District; and 

B. Adopt the Modified Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement 
District Management District Plan. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Overview 
 
On September 28, 2010 the Santa Barbara City Council approved Resolution No.10-080 
establishing the Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District 
(TBID) and approved the TBID Management District Plan.  The TBID is a benefit 
assessment district designed to increase tourism by creating a supplemental funding 
source for marketing the south coast region of Santa Barbara County. The TBID region 
includes the Cities of Santa Barbara, Goleta, and Carpinteria, and the nearby 
unincorporated areas of the County of Santa Barbara, with the City of Santa Barbara 
designated as the lead jurisdiction.  
 
The five year term of the TBID is set to expire on December 31, 2015. In late 2013, Visit 
Santa Barbara (VSB) began the TBID renewal process by meeting with lodging industry 
focus groups and stakeholders to provide an overview of the TBID accomplishments, 
answer questions, and get input regarding changes to the TBID assessment.   
   
On October 28, 2014 the Santa Barbara City Council approved Resolution No.14-072 
renewing the Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District (TBID) 
and approved the 2015-2020 TBID Management District Plan.  The City of Carpinteria did 
not consent to be included in the TBID and therefore is no longer a participant in the TBID. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Public Hearing On The Proposed Modification Of The 2011-2015 Santa Barbara South 
Coast Tourism Business Improvement District 
December 16, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
Modification Process 
 
The renewed 2015-2020 TBID will take effect January 1, 2015. This is one full year 
before the existing 2011-2015 TBID expires on December 31, 2015.  In order to 
effectuate the early renewal, it is necessary to dissolve the current TBID.  If the current 
TBID is not dissolved, both would exist simultaneously. The City Council adopted a 
Resolution of Intention to Modify the Management District Plan of the TBID on October 
28, 2014 which was the first step in the dissolution process.  The resolution also fixed 
the place and time of a public meeting and public hearing.  These items were proposed 
to be held on November 25 and December 16, respectively.   
 
A public meeting was held on November 25, 2014, as required, to modify the 2011-2015 
TBID. At that meeting there was no testimony from the public and affected business 
owners regarding the proposed TBID modification. Council was not asked to take any 
action at the public meeting. 
 
The public hearing today marks the final step in the legal process. Council will consider 
the adoption of the Resolution to Modify the TBID Management District Plan to shorten 
the duration of the 2011-2015 TBID, from five years to four years.  The modification will 
cause the TBID to expire on December 31, 2014. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The current TBID generates approximately $1.75 million for marketing outreach; the 
renewal will generate an additional $1.38 million for marketing efforts.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District 

Management District Plan 
  
PREPARED BY: Genie Wilson, Treasury Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Acting Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 



 
  
 

 
SANTA BARBARA SOUTH COAST TOURISM 

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

MANAGEMENT DISTRICT PLAN 
 
 

Submitted to the 
 
 
 

Santa Barbara Conference & Visitors Bureau and Film Commission 
 
 

October 13, 2014 
 

by 
 

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 1 

 
SANTA BARBARA SOUTH COAST TOURISM BUSINESS 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT PLAN 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
I. INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW ....................................................................................... 2 

II. WHY A TOURISM BUSINESS IMPROVENT DISTRICT? .................................................. 4 

III. WHAT IS A TOURISM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT? ................................... 5 

IV. SANTA BARBARA TBID BOUNDARY .................................................................................... 6 

V. SERVICE PLAN AND BUDGET ................................................................................................ 8 

VI. BID GOVERNANCE.................................................................................................................... 12 

APPENDIX 1 – THE PROPERTY AND BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT LAW OF 

1994 .................................................................................................................................................... 13 

APPENDIX 2 – LODGING BUSINESSES TO BE ASSESSED WITHIN THE SBSCTBID: ........ 27 

 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 2 

 
I. INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW 
 
Developed by the Santa Barbara Conference & Visitors Bureau and Film Commission (SBCVB), 
the Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District (SBSCTBID) is a benefit 
assessment district proposed to help fund marketing and sales promotion efforts for lodging 
businesses.  This approach has been used successfully in other destination areas throughout the 
country to improve tourism and drive additional room nights.   
 
Location: The Cities of Santa Barbara, Carpinteria, Goleta and portions of unincorporated 

southern Santa Barbara County (see map on page 7).   
 
Services: Marketing and sales promotions to increase tourism and to market the commercial 

lodging properties located in the SBSCTBID as a tourist, meeting and event 
destination.  These services are designed to benefit the commercial lodging 
businesses within the SBSCTBID boundaries. 

 
Budget: The total SBSCTBID budget for year one of its four (5) year operation is a base of 

approximately $1,820,000.  
 
Cost: The annual assessment rate for the first year of operation is as follows: lodging 

businesses with an average daily rate (ADR) of under $100 shall be assessed 
$0.50 per occupied room per night, lodging businesses with an ADR between 
$100 and $150 shall be assessed $1.00 per occupied room per night, lodging 
businesses with an ADR over $150 and up to $200 shall be assessed $1.50 per 
occupied room per night and lodging businesses with an ADR over $200 shall be 
assessed $2.00 per occupied room per night.  Lodging properties with 3 or less 
units shall be exempt from the assessment. Based on the benefit received, 
assessments will not be collected on lodging stays of more than 30 consecutive 
days, federal government employees on government business, stays at time 
shares, and stays booked or contracted for and paid for prior to January 1, 2011. 
The ADR figures shall be updated annually. 

   
Name: Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District. 
 

Formation: TBID formation requires submittal of petitions from lodging businesses 
representing more than 50% of the total annual assessment followed by a City 
Council hearing and an opportunity for a written protest.  The assessed lodging 
business owners will receive notice of the public meeting and the public hearing 
by mail.  If there is a majority written protest, the TBID will not be formed. In 
addition, prior to the City Council hearing, the cities of Carpinteria, Goleta and 
the County will consider resolutions of consent to the City of Santa Barbara to 
form the TBID. 

 
Duration: The proposed SBSCTBID will have a four-year life.  The SBSCTBID assessment 

will be implemented beginning January 1, 2011 and will be in effect for four 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 3 

years, ending on December 31, 2014.  After four years, the petition and City 
Council hearing process must be repeated for the SBSCTBID to be renewed.  
Also, once per year there is a 30-day period in which owners paying more than 
50% of the assessment may protest and terminate the district.   



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 4 

 
II. WHY A TOURISM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT?    

     
There are several reasons why now is the right time to form a TBID; the most compelling 
reasons are as follows: 
 
1. The Need to Increase Occupancy  

 
The formation of the SBSCTBID is a proactive effort to provide supplemental funding 
beyond that provided by the Cities of Santa Barbara, Carpinteria, and Goleta, and the 
County of Santa Barbara.  The funding ensures the SBCVB has adequate financing for 
the investment required to increase occupancy in the lodging industry and reach 
competitive in the conference segment of the tourism market.  The investment will cover 
an expanded marketing and promotional budget needed to reach this market segment.   

 
2. An Opportunity for Increasing Tax Revenues  

 
As occupancy rates increase, so too will the Transient Occupancy Tax revenues.  With 
stable public/private funding for the SBCVB, annual occupancy rates should increase 
significantly as the new marketing and sales promotion programs are implemented.  
Greater occupancy will also produce an increase in sales tax revenues from tourist 
spending.  This represents a substantial return.  The formation of a SBSCTBID in 
partnership with the SBCVB creates a stable funding source tied directly to tourism 
promotion   

 
3. The Ability to Grow the Economy without Substantial Development  

 
The SBCVB expects to achieve the above levels of revenue growth without a 
proportionate increase in the “footprint” of the tourism industry infrastructure.  Little or 
no development should be required to raise average occupancy rates.  Any development 
required to raise occupancy rates even more should be relatively minor in scope 
compared to the existing facilities.   

 
4. An Opportunity to Unite the Lodging Community 

 
The formation of a BID can unite the local lodging community around mutual goals for 
the community.  The BID is an opportunity for the SBCVB and the lodging industry to 
work together to grow marketing resources for Santa Barbara. 
 

5. Funds are Dedicated to a Specific Purpose 
 

Unlike other sources of funding, monies collected through a tourism BID can only be 
used for the specific uses set out in this plan.  This allows the Board of Directors to 
choose goals and services that specifically fit the area and benefits the lodging 
community as a whole, while knowing that these funds will be dedicated to achieving 
these goals.



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 5 

 
III. WHAT IS A TOURISM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT? 
 
Tourism Business Improvement Districts (TBIDs) utilize the efficiencies of private sector 
operation in the market-based promotion of tourism districts.  TBIDs allow lodging and tourism-
related business owners to organize their efforts to increase tourism.  Tourism-related business 
owners within the district fund a TBID, and those funds are used to provide services that the 
businesses desire and that benefit the lodging businesses within the District.   
 

TBID services may include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Marketing of the Area 
 

 Tourism Promotion Activities 
 

 Sales Lead Generation 
 
In California, Tourism BIDs are formed pursuant to the Property and Business Improvement 
District Law of 1994 (PBID Law).  This law allow for the creation of a special benefit 
assessment district to raise funds within a specific geographic area.  The key difference between 
TBIDs and other special benefit assessment districts is that funds raised are returned to the 
private non-profit corporation governing the district.  
 

There are many benefits to TBIDs: 
 

 Funds cannot be diverted for other government programs; 
 

 TBIDs are customized to fit the needs of each tourism district; 
 

 They allow for a wide range of services, including those listed above; 
 

 TBIDs are designed, created and governed by those who will pay the assessment; 
 

 The statute requires petition support from lodging businesses paying over 50% of 
the annual proposed assessments; 

 
 They provide a stable funding source for tourism promotion. 

 
The Property and Business Improvement District Law of 1994 (AB 3754), as amended through 
January 1, 2010, is provided in Appendix 1 of this document.  
 
 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 6 

 
IV. SANTA BARBARA SOUTH COAST TBID BOUNDARY 
 
The SBSCTBID will include all commercial lodging businesses with more than three units 
available for public occupancy within the boundaries of the Cities of Santa Barbara, Carpinteria, 
and Goleta, and portions of unincorporated southern Santa Barbara County (See Map).  The 
boundaries of the district can be more particularly described as: Refugio Road being the western 
boundary, the Santa Barbara/Ventura County line being the eastern boundary, the Pacific Ocean 
being the southern boundary, and Camino Cielo / Juncal Road being the northern boundary.   
 
Please see the map on the following page.  Businesses are identified on the map with the 
numbers listed below.  A larger copy of this map can be obtained by calling (916)325-0604 or 
(800)999-7781.   

 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 7 

 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 8 

V. SERVICE PLAN AND BUDGET 
 
Assessment 
 
The SBSCTBID will include all commercial lodging businesses with more than three units, 
existing or in the future, available for public occupancy within the boundaries of the Cities of 
Santa Barbara, Carpinteria, and Goleta, and portions of unincorporated southern Santa Barbara 
County (See Map). The annual assessment rate for the first year of operation is as follows: 
lodging businesses with an average daily rate (ADR) of under $100 shall be assessed $0.50 per 
occupied room per night, lodging businesses with an ADR between $100 and $150 shall be 
assessed $1.00 per occupied room per night, lodging businesses with an ADR over $150 and up 
to $200 shall be assessed $1.50 per occupied room per night and lodging businesses with an 
ADR over $200 shall be assessed $2.00 per occupied room per night.  Lodging properties with 3 
or less units shall be exempt from the assessment.  Based on the benefit received, assessments 
will not be collected on lodging stays of more than 30 consecutive days, federal government 
employees on government business, stays at time shares, and stays booked or contracted for and 
paid prior to January 1, 2011. The ADR figures shall be updated annually. 
 
Bonds will not be issued. 
 
The amount of assessment, if passed on to each transient, shall be separately stated from the 
amount of rent charged and any other applicable taxes, and each transient shall receive a receipt 
for payment from the business. 
 
Determination of Special Benefit 
 
State law provides that the expenses of the district shall be apportioned in proportion to the benefit 
received by assessed businesses.   
 
A special benefit is defined as a particular and distinct benefit over and above general benefits 
conferred on the public at large.  Conversely, a general benefit is a benefit to businesses in the 
surrounding community or a benefit to the public in general resulting from the improvement, 
activity or service to be provided by the assessment levied.  Many general benefits to the public at 
large are conveyed by municipal services, such as fire protection, police services and public transit 
services.  These services are targeted to serve the public at large and do not confer special benefits 
on particular businesses.   
 
The services in this Management District Plan are designed to provide targeted services to the 
assessed lodging businesses.  These services are tailored not to serve the general public, but rather to 
serve the specific lodging businesses within the District, e.g., the proposed activities are specifically 
targeted to increase room nights for assessed lodging businesses within the boundaries of the 
District, and are narrowly tailored.  For example, only the assessed lodging businesses will receive 
sales leads from the sales efforts paid for with TBID monies.  In addition, listing on websites and 
collateral materials paid for with TBID monies will only include the assessed businesses. 
The activities paid for from assessment revenue are lodging business services creating special 
benefit to those businesses.  In addition, these activities are not for the benefit of the general public 
and do not provide general benefit as defined above.  All general benefits (if any) to the surrounding 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 9 

community and general public are intangible and unquantifiable.  It is appropriate that these special 
business-related benefits be funded through business assessments.   
 
Time and Manner for Collecting Assessments 
 
The SBSCTBID assessment will be implemented beginning January 1, 2011 and will continue 
for four years.  The City of Santa Barbara shall be responsible for collecting the assessment 
(including any delinquencies, penalties and interest) from each lodging business located within 
its jurisdictional boundary and the jurisdictional boundary of the City of Carpinteria.  Each other  
jurisdiction shall  be responsible for collecting the assessment (including any delinquencies, 
penalties and interest) from each of the lodging businesses located in the boundaries of the 
TBID.  Except as provided herein, each commercial lodging operator shall report and remit the 
TBID assessments to its jurisdiction. 
 
Except for the City of Santa Barbara which shall also remit assessments collected from lodging 
businesses located in the City of Carpinteria, each jurisdiction shall forward the assessments to 
the SBCVB which will have the responsibility of managing TBID programs as provided in this 
Management District Plan.  Jurisdictions may charge a fee of no more than 1% (one percent) of 
the budget to cover their administrative expenses, except the City of Santa Barbara may charge a 
fee of up to three percent (3%) to cover its administrative costs from the assessments it collects.   
 
All penalties and interest shall be charged at the same rates as those provided by the Santa 
Barbara Transient Occupancy Tax, Santa Barbara Municipal Code Title 4, Chapter 4.08.  If a 
jurisdiction so desires, penalties and interest collected on delinquent assessments may be retained 
by the local jurisdiction for costs associated with collection. 
 
Service Plan Budget and Programs to be Provided: 
 
Service Plan Budget Summary- Fiscal Years 2010-2014 
The summary of the fiscal year service plan budget for the SBSCTBID is provided below.  The 
total four year improvement and service plan budget is projected at approximately $1,820,000 
annually.  The table below outlines expected revenues from each jurisdiction within the District. 
Due to the Assessment implementation date of January 1, 2011, the year one (Fiscal Year 2010-
2011) service plan budget is estimated to be one-half, approximately $900,000.00, of the full 
fiscal year service plan budget. 
 

Jurisdiction Estimated 
Collections  

Santa Barbara City $1,130,000 
Santa Barbara County $250,000 
Goleta $340,000 
Carpinteria $100,000 
Total $1,820,000.00 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 10 

E. Annual Service Plan: 
 
In this plan, the City has set out the overarching message of the marketing program and some of 
its elements, and has left development of the remaining details to the city-appointed owners’ 
association, which is answerable to the City Council.  A service plan budget has been developed 
to deliver service levels throughout the District.  An annual service plan and budget will be 
developed by the TBID Committee of the SBCVB Board.  Please see the budget exhibit below.  
In the first year of operations, the City of Santa Barbara may charge a one-time set-up fee of up 
to $5,000 and the SBSCTBID may reimburse the SBCVB for district formation costs of up to 
$50,000, which amounts will be deducted from the budget categories pro-rata.  If there are funds 
remaining at the end of the District term and lodging businesses choose to renew, these 
remaining funds could be transferred to the renewed District.  If there are funds remaining at the 
end of the District and lodging businesses choose not to renew, any remaining funds will be 
spent consistent with this Plan.   
 
This service plan will only include lodging businesses that are participating in the SBSCTBID.   
 
 

SANTA BARBARA SOUTH COAST TBID 
Annual Budget, Years One – Four 

 
 

Services Provided   Total 
Sales and Marketing (10.25%)  $  186,550 
    
Advertising and Communication (71.75%)  $1,305,950 
   
Administration and Advocacy (5.5%)  $  100,000 
  

  
Local Destination Marketing (5.5%)  $100,000 
   
Contingency/Renewal (4.5%)  $82,000 
   
Collection Administration Fee (2.5%) 

 
 $45,500 

Total Tourism District Annual Budget  $1,820,000 
 
The City Council hereby directs the implementation of a coordinated program of promotions.  
By adopting this Management District Plan, the City Council establishes programs that include 
the messages specified herein.  This Management District Plan sets forth the following 
contemplated activities:  
 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 11 

Sales and Marketing 
A sales and marketing program will promote the southern coast Santa Barbara area as a tourist 
destination and attract overnight groups.  The sales and marketing program will have a central 
theme of promoting the southern coast Santa Barbara area as a desirable place to visit, and may 
include sales missions, trade shows, sales calls and international representation.  
 
Advertising and Communications  
An advertising and communications program will build greater awareness of the participating 
lodging businesses.  Advertising and communications programs may include trade promotions, 
online advertising, and trade advertising.  
 
Local Destination Marketing  
A destination marketing organization for each jurisdiction shall receive $25,000, to be spent on 
local destination marketing activities consistent with those described in this Management District 
Plan.  The nonprofit destination marketing organization in each jurisdiction that has the primary 
responsibility for promoting tourism in that jurisdiction shall receive the local funds.   
 
Administration and Advocacy  
The administration and advocacy portion of the budget will be utilized for staffing costs, office 
costs, and other general administrative costs.  
 
Contingency/Renewal  
The contingency/renewal fund shall be used for unanticipated costs of SBSCTBID programs, or 
in the event actual assessments collected are less than the amounts budgeted.  In the event there 
are contingency funds remaining upon the expiration of the district, those funds may be used to 
renew the district.   
 
Collection Administration Fee 
The County of Santa Barbara and the cities of Goleta and Carpinteria, if they collect 
Assessments, shall each be paid a fee equal to 1% of the amount collected in their respective 
jurisdictions to cover the costs of collection and administration.  The City of Santa Barbara shall 
be paid a fee equal to 3% of the amount collected to cover the costs of collection and 
administration. 
 
Adjustments  
The City approved marketing plan shall remain consistent with the budget above.  Although 
actual revenues will fluctuate due to market conditions, the proportional allocations of the budget 
above shall remain the same.  The City and the SBCVB board shall have the authority to adjust 
budget allocations between the categories above by no more than fifteen percent (15%) per year.   



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 12 

 
VI. BID GOVERNANCE 
 
Santa Barbara TBID Corporation Governance 
 
The City Council, through adoption of this Management District Plan, has the right, pursuant to 
Streets and Highways Code §36651, to identify the body that will implement the proposed 
program, which shall be the Owners’ Association of the TBID as defined in Streets and 
Highways Code §36614.5.  The SBCVB shall serve as the Owners’ Association for the 
SBSCTBID.  The President and CEO of the SBCVB shall be charged with the day-to-day 
operations of the TBID.  There shall be a TBID sub-committee charged with developing budgets 
and priorities for the TBID.  The TBID committee shall be comprised of a diverse group taking 
into consideration the size of lodging properties and geographic area.   
 
Brown Act and California Public Records Act Compliance  
 
The Owners’ Association is subject to government regulations relating to transparency namely 
the Ralph M. Brown Act and the California Public Records Act, designed to promote public 
accountability.  The Owner’s Association of a TBID is considered a legislative body under the 
Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code §54950 et seq.).  Thus, meetings of the SBCVB board 
must be held in compliance with the public notice and other requirements of the Brown Act.  The 
Owner’s Association is also subject to the record keeping requirements of the California Public 
Records Act.   
 
Annual Report      
 
The SBCVB board shall present an annual report at the end of each year of operation to the City 
Council pursuant to Streets and Highways Code §36650 (see Appendix 1).  A copy of the annual 
report shall also be provided to the cities of Goleta and Carpinteria, and the County of Santa 
Barbara.   



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 13 

 
APPENDIX 1 – THE PROPERTY AND BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT LAW OF 1994  
 
 
PROPERTY AND BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT LAW OF 1994 

STREETS AND HIGHWAYS CODE 
Division 18.  Parking   

 
*** THIS DOCUMENT IS CURRENT THROUGH 2009-2010 EXTRAORDINARY SESSIONS 1-5, *** 

AND 7, AND URGENCY LEGISLATION THROUGH CH 4 OF THE 2010 REGULAR SESSION 
 
 
 
§ 36600.  Citation of part 
 

This part shall be known and may be cited as the "Property and Business Improvement 
District Law of 1994." 
 
§ 36601.  Legislative findings and declarations 
 

The Legislature finds and declares all of the following: 

 (a) Businesses located and operating within the business districts of this state's communities 
are economically disadvantaged, are underutilized, and are unable to attract customers due to 
inadequate facilities, services, and activities in the business districts. 

 (b) It is in the public interest to promote the economic revitalization and physical 
maintenance of the business districts of its cities in order to create jobs, attract new businesses, 
and prevent the erosion of the business districts. 

 (c) It is of particular local benefit to allow cities to fund business related improvements, 
maintenance, and activities through the levy of assessments upon the businesses or real property 
that benefits from those improvements. 

 (d) Assessments levied for the purpose of providing improvements and promoting activities 
that benefit real property or businesses are not taxes for the general benefit of a city, but are 
assessments for the improvements and activities which confer special benefits upon the real 
property or businesses for which the improvements and activities are provided. 
 
§ 36602.  Purpose of part 
 

The purpose of this part is to supplement previously enacted provisions of law that authorize 
cities to levy assessments within a business improvement area. This part does not affect or limit 
any other provisions of law authorizing or providing for the furnishing of improvements or 
activities or the raising of revenue for these purposes. 
 
§ 36603.  Preemption of authority or charter city to adopt ordinances levying assessments 
 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 14 

Nothing in this part is intended to preempt the authority of a charter city to adopt ordinances 
providing for a different method of levying assessments for similar or additional purposes from 
those set forth in this part. A property and business improvement district created pursuant to this 
part is expressly exempt from the provisions of the Special Assessment Investigation, Limitation 
and Majority Protest Act of 1931 (Division 4 (commencing with Section 2800)). 
 
§ 36603.5.  Part prevails over conflicting provisions 
 

Any provision in this part that conflicts with any other provision of law shall prevail over the 
other provision of law. 
 
§ 36604.  Severability 
 

This part is intended to be construed liberally and, if any provision is held invalid, the 
remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect. Assessments levied under this part are 
not special taxes. 
 
§ 36605.  [Section repealed 2001.] 
 

§ 36606.  "Assessment" 
 

"Assessment" means a levy for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing, or 
maintaining improvements and promoting activities which will benefit the properties or 
businesses located within a property and business improvement district. 
 
§ 36607.  "Business" 
 

"Business" means all types of businesses and includes financial institutions and professions. 
 
§ 36608.  "City" 
 

"City" means a city, county, city and county, or an agency or entity created pursuant to 
Article 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the 
Government Code, the public member agencies of which includes only cities, counties, or a city 
and county. 
 
§ 36609.  "City council" 
 

"City council" means the city council of a city or the board of supervisors of a county, or the 
agency, commission, or board created pursuant to a joint powers agreement and which is a city 
within the meaning of this part. 
 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 15 

§ 36610.  'Improvement" 
 

"Improvement" means the acquisition, construction, installation, or maintenance of any 
tangible property with an estimated useful life of five years or more including, but not limited to, 
the following: 

 (a) Parking facilities. 

 (b) Benches, booths, kiosks, display cases, pedestrian shelters and signs. 

 (c) Trash receptacles and public restrooms. 

 (d) Lighting and heating facilities. 

 (e) Decorations. 

 (f) Parks. 

 (g) Fountains. 

 (h) Planting areas. 

 (i) Closing, opening, widening, or narrowing of existing streets. 

 (j) Facilities or equipment, or both, to enhance security of persons and property within the 
area. 

 (k) Ramps, sidewalks, plazas, and pedestrian malls. 

 (l) Rehabilitation or removal of existing structures. 
 
§ 36611.  "Property and business improvement district"; "District" 
 

"Property and business improvement district," or "district," means a property and business 
improvement district established pursuant to this part. 
 
§ 36612.  "Property" 
 

"Property" means real property situated within a district. 
 
§ 36613.  "Activities" 
 

"Activities" means, but is not limited to, all of the following: 

 (a) Promotion of public events which benefit businesses or real property in the district. 

 (b) Furnishing of music in any public place within the district. 

 (c) Promotion of tourism within the district. 

 (d) Marketing and economic development, including retail retention and recruitment. 

 (e) Providing security, sanitation, graffiti removal, street and sidewalk cleaning, and other 
municipal services supplemental to those normally provided by the municipality. 

 (f) Activities which benefit businesses and real property located in the district. 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 16 

 
§ 36614.  "Management district plan"; "Plan" 
 

"Management district plan" or "plan" means a proposal as defined in Section 36622. 
 
§ 36614.5.  "Owners' association" 
 

"Owners' association" means a private nonprofit entity that is under contract with a city to 
administer or implement activities and improvements specified in the management district plan. 
An owners' association may be an existing nonprofit entity or a newly formed nonprofit entity. 
An owners' association is a private entity and may not be considered a public entity for any 
purpose, nor may its board members or staff be considered to be public officials for any purpose. 
Notwithstanding this section, an owners' association shall comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act 
(Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the 
Government Code), at all times when matters within the subject matter of the district are heard, 
discussed, or deliberated, and with the California Public Records Act (Chapter 3.5 (commencing 
with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code), for all documents relating 
to activities of the district. 
 
§ 36615.  "Property owner"; "Owner" 
 

"Property owner" or "owner" means any person shown as the owner of land on the last 
equalized assessment roll or otherwise known to be the owner of land by the city council. The 
city council has no obligation to obtain other information as to the ownership of land, and its 
determination of ownership shall be final and conclusive for the purposes of this part. Wherever 
this subdivision requires the signature of the property owner, the signature of the authorized 
agent of the property owner shall be sufficient. 
 
§ 36616.  "Tenant" 
 

"Tenant" means an occupant pursuant to a lease of commercial space or a dwelling unit, 
other than an owner. 
 
§ 36617.  Alternate method of financing certain improvements and activities; Effect on 
other provisions 
 

This part provides an alternative method of financing certain improvements and activities. 
The provisions of this part shall not affect or limit any other provisions of law authorizing or 
providing for the furnishing of improvements or activities or the raising of revenue for these 
purposes. Every improvement area established pursuant to the Parking and Business 
Improvement Area Law of 1989 (Part 6 (commencing with Section 36500) of this division) is 
valid and effective and is unaffected by this part. 
 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 17 

§ 36620.  Establishment of property and business improvement district 
 

A property and business improvement district may be established as provided in this chapter. 
 
§ 36620.5.  Requirement of consent of city council 
 

A county may not form a district within the territorial jurisdiction of a city without the 
consent of the city council of that city. A city may not form a district within the unincorporated 
territory of a county without the consent of the board of supervisors of that county. A city may 
not form a district within the territorial jurisdiction of another city without the consent of the city 
council of the other city. 
 
§ 36621.  Initiation of proceedings; Petition of property or business owners in proposed 
district 
 

(a) Upon the submission of a written petition, signed by the property or business owners in 
the proposed district who will pay more than 50 percent of the assessments proposed to be 
levied, the city council may initiate proceedings to form a district by the adoption of a resolution 
expressing its intention to form a district. The amount of assessment attributable to property or a 
business owned by the same property or business owner that is in excess of 40 percent of the 
amount of all assessments proposed to be levied, shall not be included in determining whether 
the petition is signed by property or business owners who will pay more than 50 percent of the 
total amount of assessments proposed to be levied. 

(b) The petition of property or business owners required under subdivision (a) shall include a 
summary of the management district plan. That summary shall include all of the following: 

 (1) A map showing the boundaries of the district. 

 (2) Information specifying where the complete management district plan can be obtained. 

 (3) Information specifying that the complete management district plan shall be furnished 
upon request. 

(c) The resolution of intention described in subdivision (a) shall contain all of the following: 

 (1) A brief description of the proposed activities and improvements, the amount of the 
proposed assessment, a statement as to whether the assessment will be levied on property or 
businesses within the district, a statement as to whether bonds will be issued, and a description of 
the exterior boundaries of the proposed district. The descriptions and statements do not need to 
be detailed and shall be sufficient if they enable an owner to generally identify the nature and 
extent of the improvements and activities and the location and extent of the proposed district. 

 (2) A time and place for a public hearing on the establishment of the property and business 
improvement district and the levy of assessments, which shall be consistent with the 
requirements of Section 36623. 
 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 18 

§ 36622.  Contents of management district plan 
 

The management district plan shall contain all of the following: 

 (a) A map of the district in sufficient detail to locate each parcel of property and, if 
businesses are to be assessed, each business within the district. 

 (b) The name of the proposed district. 

 (c) A description of the boundaries of the district, including the boundaries of benefit zones, 
proposed for establishment or extension in a manner sufficient to identify the affected lands and 
businesses included. The boundaries of a proposed property assessment district shall not overlap 
with the boundaries of another existing property assessment district created pursuant to this part. 
This part does not prohibit the boundaries of a district created pursuant to this part to overlap 
with other assessment districts established pursuant to other provisions of law, including, but not 
limited to, the Parking and Business Improvement Area Law of 1989 (Part 6 (commencing with 
Section 36500)). This part does not prohibit the boundaries of a business assessment district 
created pursuant to this part to overlap with another business assessment district created pursuant 
to this part.  This part does not prohibit the boundaries of a business assessment district created 
pursuant to this part to overlap with a property assessment district created pursuant to this part. 

 (d) The improvements and activities proposed for each year of operation of the district and 
the maximum cost thereof. 

 (e) The total annual amount proposed to be expended for improvements, maintenance and 
operations, and debt service in each year of operation of the district. 

 (f) The proposed source or sources of financing, including the proposed method and basis of 
levying the assessment in sufficient detail to allow each property or business owner to calculate 
the amount of the assessment to be levied against his or her property or business. The plan also 
shall state whether bonds will be issued to finance improvements. 

 (g) The time and manner of collecting the assessments. 

 (h) The specific number of years in which assessments will be levied. In a new district, the 
maximum number of years shall be five. Upon renewal, a district shall have a term not to exceed 
10 years. Notwithstanding these limitations, a district created pursuant to this part to finance 
capital improvements with bonds may levy assessments until the maximum maturity of the 
bonds. The management district plan may set forth specific increases in assessments for each 
year of operation of the district. 

 (i) The proposed time for implementation and completion of the management district plan. 

 (j) Any proposed rules and regulations to be applicable to the district. 

 (k) A list of the properties or businesses to be assessed, including the assessor's parcel 
numbers for properties to be assessed, and a statement of the method or methods by which the 
expenses of a district will be imposed upon benefited real property or businesses, in proportion to 
the benefit received by the property or business, to defray the cost thereof, including operation 
and maintenance. The plan may provide that all or any class or category of real property which is 
exempt by law from real property taxation may nevertheless be included within the boundaries of 
the district but shall not be subject to assessment on real property. 

 (l) Any other item or matter required to be incorporated therein by the city council. 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 19 

 
§ 36623.  Procedure to levy assessment 
 

(a) If a city council proposes to levy a new or increased property assessment, the notice and 
protest and hearing procedure shall comply with Section 53753 of the Government Code. 

(b) If a city council proposes to levy a new or increased business assessment, the notice and 
protest and hearing procedure shall comply with Section 54954.6 of the Government Code, 
except that notice shall be mailed to the owners of the businesses proposed to be assessed. A 
protest may be made orally or in writing by any interested person. Every written protest shall be 
filed with the clerk at or before the time fixed for the public hearing. The city council may waive 
any irregularity in the form or content of any written protest. A written protest may be withdrawn 
in writing at any time before the conclusion of the public hearing. Each written protest shall 
contain a description of the business in which the person subscribing the protest is interested 
sufficient to identify the business and, if a person subscribing is not shown on the official records 
of the city as the owner of the business, the protest shall contain or be accompanied by written 
evidence that the person subscribing is the owner of the business. A written protest which does 
not comply with this section shall not be counted in determining a majority protest. If written 
protests are received from the owners of businesses in the proposed district which will pay 50 
percent or more of the assessments proposed to be levied and protests are not withdrawn so as to 
reduce the protests to less than 50 percent, no further proceedings to levy the proposed 
assessment against such businesses, as contained in the resolution of intention, shall be taken for 
a period of one year from the date of the finding of a majority protest by the city council. 
 

§ 36624.  Changes to proposed assessments 
 

At the conclusion of the public hearing to establish the district, the city council may adopt, 
revise, change, reduce, or modify the proposed assessment or the type or types of improvements 
and activities to be funded with the revenues from the assessments. Proposed assessments may 
only be revised by reducing any or all of them. At the public hearing, the city council may only 
make changes in, to, or from the boundaries of the proposed property and business improvement 
district that will exclude territory that will not benefit from the proposed improvements or 
activities. Any modifications, revisions, reductions, or changes to the proposed assessment 
district shall be reflected in the notice and map recorded pursuant to Section 36627. 
 
§ 36625.  Resolution of formation 
 

(a) If the city council, following the public hearing, decides to establish the proposed 
property and business improvement district, the city council shall adopt a resolution of formation 
that shall contain all of the following: 

 (1) A brief description of the proposed activities and improvements, the amount of the 
proposed assessment, a statement as to whether the assessment will be levied on property or 
businesses within the district, a statement about whether bonds will be issued, and a description 
of the exterior boundaries of the proposed district. The descriptions and statements do not need 
to be detailed and shall be sufficient if they enable an owner to generally identify the nature and 
extent of the improvements and activities and the location and extent of the proposed district. 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 20 

 (2) The number, date of adoption, and title of the resolution of intention. 
 (3) The time and place where the public hearing was held concerning the establishment of 

the district. 

 (4) A determination regarding any protests received. The city shall not establish the district 
or levy assessments if a majority protest was received. 

 (5) A statement that the properties or businesses in the district established by the resolution 
shall be subject to any amendments to this part. 

 (6) A statement that the improvements and activities to be provided in the district will be 
funded by the levy of the assessments. The revenue from the levy of assessments within a district 
shall not be used to provide improvements or activities outside the district or for any purpose 
other than the purposes specified in the resolution of intention, as modified by the city council at 
the hearing concerning establishment of the district. 

 (7) A finding that the property or businesses within the area of the property and business 
improvement district will be benefited by the improvements and activities funded by the 
assessments proposed to be levied. 

(b) The adoption of the resolution of formation and recordation of the notice and map 
pursuant to Section 36627 shall constitute the levy of an assessment in each of the fiscal years 
referred to in the management district plan. 
 
§ 36626.  Resolution establishing district 
 

If the city council, following the public hearing, desires to establish the proposed property 
and business improvement district, and the city council has not made changes pursuant to 
Section 36624, or has made changes that do not substantially change the proposed assessment, 
the city council shall adopt a resolution establishing the district. The resolution shall contain all 
of the information specified in paragraphs (1) to (8), inclusive, of subdivision (b) of Section 
36625, but need not contain information about the preliminary resolution if none has been 
adopted. 
 
§ 36626.5.  [Section repealed 1999.] 
 
§ 36626.6.  [Section repealed 1999.] 
 
§ 36626.7.  [Section repealed 1999.] 
 
§ 36627.  Notice and assessment diagram 
 

Following adoption of the resolution establishing the district pursuant to Section 36625 or 
36626, the clerk of the city shall record a notice and an assessment diagram pursuant to Section 
3114. If the assessment is levied on businesses, the text of the recorded notice shall be modified 
to reflect that the assessment will be levied on businesses, or specified categories of businesses, 
within the area of the district. No other provision of Division 4.5 (commencing with Section 
3100) applies to an assessment district created pursuant to this part. 
 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 21 

§ 36628.  Establishment of separate benefit zones within district; Categories of businesses 
 

The city council may establish one or more separate benefit zones within the district based 
upon the degree of benefit derived from the improvements or activities to be provided within the 
benefit zone and may impose a different assessment within each benefit zone. If the assessment 
is to be levied on businesses, the city council may also define categories of businesses based 
upon the degree of benefit that each will derive from the improvements or activities to be 
provided within the district and may impose a different assessment or rate of assessment on each 
category of business, or on each category of business within each zone. 
 
§ 36628.5.  Assessments on businesses or property owners 
 

The city council may levy assessments on businesses or on property owners, or a 
combination of the two, pursuant to this part. The city council shall structure the assessments in 
whatever manner it determines corresponds with the distribution of benefits from the proposed 
improvements and activities. 
 
§ 36629.  Provisions and procedures applicable to benefit zones and business categories 
 

All provisions of this part applicable to the establishment, modification, or disestablishment 
of a property and business improvement district apply to the establishment, modification, or 
disestablishment of benefit zones or categories of business. The city council shall, to establish, 
modify, or disestablish a benefit zone or category of business, follow the procedure to establish, 
modify, or disestablish a parking and business improvement area. 
 
§ 36630.  Expiration of district; Creation of new district 
 

If a property and business improvement district expires due to the time limit set pursuant to 
subdivision (h) of Section 36622, a new management district plan may be created and a new 
district established pursuant to this part. 
 
§ 36631.  Time and manner of collection of assessments; Delinquent payments 
 

The collection of the assessments levied pursuant to this part shall be made at the time and in 
the manner set forth by the city council in the resolution establishing the management district 
plan described in Section 36622. Assessments levied on real property may be collected at the 
same time and in the same manner as for the ad valorem property tax, and may provide for the 
same lien priority and penalties for delinquent payment. All delinquent payments for assessments 
levied pursuant to this part shall be charged interest and penalties. 
 
§ 36632.  Assessments to be based on estimated benefit; Classification of real property and 
businesses; Exclusion of residential and agricultural property 
 

(a) The assessments levied on real property pursuant to this part shall be levied on the basis 
of the estimated benefit to the real property within the property and business improvement 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 22 

district. The city council may classify properties for purposes of determining the benefit to 
property of the improvements and activities provided pursuant to this part. 

(b) Assessments levied on businesses pursuant to this part shall be levied on the basis of the 
estimated benefit to the businesses within the property and business improvement district. The 
city council may classify businesses for purposes of determining the benefit to the businesses of 
the improvements and activities provided pursuant to this part. 

(c) Properties zoned solely for residential use, or that are zoned for agricultural use, are 
conclusively presumed not to benefit from the improvements and service funded through these 
assessments, and shall not be subject to any assessment pursuant to this part. 
 
§ 36633.  Time for contesting validity of assessment 
 

The validity of an assessment levied under this part shall not be contested in any action or 
proceeding unless the action or proceeding is commenced within 30 days after the resolution 
levying the assessment is adopted pursuant to Section 36626. Any appeal from a final judgment 
in an action or proceeding shall be perfected within 30 days after the entry of judgment. 
 
§ 36634.  Service contracts authorized to establish levels of city services 
 

The city council may execute baseline service contracts that would establish levels of city 
services that would continue after a property and business improvement district has been formed. 
 
§ 36635.  Request to modify management district plan 
 

The owners' association may, at any time, request that the city council modify the 
management district plan. Any modification of the management district plan shall be made 
pursuant to this chapter. 
 
§ 36636.  Modification of plan by resolution after public hearing; Adoption of resolution of 
intention; Modification of improvements and activities by adoption of resolution after 
public hearing 
 

(a) Upon the written request of the owners' association, the city council may modify the 
management district plan after conducting one public hearing on the proposed modifications. 
The city council may modify the improvements and activities to be funded with the revenue 
derived from the levy of the assessments by adopting a resolution determining to make the 
modifications after holding a public hearing on the proposed modifications.  If the modification 
includes the levy of a new or increased assessment, the city council shall comply with Section 
36623 . Notice of all other public meetings and public hearings pursuant to this section shall 
comply with both of the following: 

 (1) The resolution of intention shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
city once at least seven days before the public meeting. 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 23 

 (2) A complete copy of the resolution of intention shall be mailed by first class mail, at least 
10 days before the public meeting, to each business owner or property owner affected by the 
proposed modification. 

(b) The city council shall adopt a resolution of intention which states the proposed 
modification prior to the public hearing required by this section. The public hearing shall be held 
not more than 90 days after the adoption of the resolution of intention. 

 
§ 36637.  Reflection of modification in notices recorded and maps 
 

Any subsequent modification of the resolution shall be reflected in subsequent notices and 
maps recorded pursuant to Division 4.5 (commencing with Section 3100), in a manner consistent 
with the provisions of Section 36627. 

 

§ 36640.  Bonds authorized; Procedure; Restriction on reduction or termination of 
assessments 
 

(a) The city council may, by resolution, determine and declare that bonds shall be issued to 
finance the estimated cost of some or all of the proposed improvements described in the 
resolution of formation adopted pursuant to Section 36625, if the resolution of formation adopted 
pursuant to that section provides for the issuance of bonds, under the Improvement Bond Act of 
1915 (Division 10 (commencing with Section 8500)) or in conjunction with Marks-Roos Local 
Bond Pooling Act of 1985 (Article 4 (commencing with Section 6584) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 
of Title 1 of the Government Code). Either act, as the case may be, shall govern the proceedings 
relating to the issuance of bonds, although proceedings under the Bond Act of 1915 may be 
modified by the city council as necessary to accommodate assessments levied upon business 
pursuant to this part. 

(b) The resolution adopted pursuant to subdivision (a) shall generally describe the proposed 
improvements specified in the resolution of formation adopted pursuant to Section 36625, set 
forth the estimated cost of those improvements, specify the number of annual installments and 
the fiscal years during which they are to be collected. The amount of debt service to retire the 
bonds shall not exceed the amount of revenue estimated to be raised from assessments over 30 
years. 

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this part, assessments levied to pay the principal 
and interest on any bond issued pursuant to this section shall not be reduced or terminated if 
doing so would interfere with the timely retirement of the debt. 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 24 

 
§ 36641.  [Section repealed 2001.] 
 
§ 36642.  [Section repealed 2001.] 
 
§ 36643.  [Section repealed 2001.] 
 
§ 36650.  Report by owners' association; Approval or modification by city council 
 

(a) The owners' association shall cause to be prepared a report for each fiscal year, except the 
first year, for which assessments are to be levied and collected to pay the costs of the 
improvements and activities described in the report. The owners' association's first report shall be 
due after the first year of operation of the district. The report may propose changes, including, 
but not limited to, the boundaries of the property and business improvement district or any 
benefit zones within the district, the basis and method of levying the assessments, and any 
changes in the classification of property, including any categories of business, if a classification 
is used. 

(b) The report shall be filed with the clerk and shall refer to the property and business 
improvement district by name, specify the fiscal year to which the report applies, and, with 
respect to that fiscal year, shall contain all of the following information: 

 (1) Any proposed changes in the boundaries of the property and business improvement 
district or in any benefit zones or classification of property or businesses within the district. 

 (2) The improvements and activities to be provided for that fiscal year. 

 (3) An estimate of the cost of providing the improvements and the activities for that fiscal 
year. 

 (4) The method and basis of levying the assessment in sufficient detail to allow each real 
property or business owner, as appropriate, to estimate the amount of the assessment to be levied 
against his or her property or business for that fiscal year. 

 (5) The amount of any surplus or deficit revenues to be carried over from a previous fiscal 
year. 

 (6) The amount of any contributions to be made from sources other than assessments levied 
pursuant to this part. 

(c) The city council may approve the report as filed by the owners' association or may 
modify any particular contained in the report and approve it as modified. Any modification shall 
be made pursuant to Sections 36635 and 36636. 

The city council shall not approve a change in the basis and method of levying assessments 
that would impair an authorized or executed contract to be paid from the revenues derived from 
the levy of assessments, including any commitment to pay principal and interest on any bonds 
issued on behalf of the district. 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 25 

§ 36651.  Designation of owners' association to provide improvements and activities 
 

The management district plan may, but is not required to, state that an owners' association 
will provide the improvements or activities described in the management district plan. If the 
management district plan designates an owners' association, the city shall contract with the 
designated nonprofit corporation to provide services. 
 
§ 36660.  Renewal of district; Transfer or refund of remaining revenues; District term limit 
 

(a) Any district previously established whose term has expired, may be renewed by following 
the procedures for establishment as provided in this chapter. 

(b) Upon renewal, any remaining revenues derived from the levy of assessments, or any 
revenues derived from the sale of assets acquired with the revenues, shall be transferred to the 
renewed district. If the renewed district includes additional parcels or businesses not included in 
the prior district, the remaining revenues shall be spent to benefit only the parcels or businesses 
in the prior district. If the renewed district does not include parcels or businesses included in the 
prior district, the remaining revenues attributable to these parcels shall be refunded to the owners 
of these parcels or businesses. 

(c) Upon renewal, a district shall have a term not to exceed 10 years, or, if the district is 
authorized to issue bonds, until the maximum maturity of those bonds. There is no requirement 
that the boundaries, assessments, improvements, or activities of a renewed district be the same as 
the original or prior district. 
 
§ 36670.  Circumstances permitting disestablishment of district; Procedure 
 

(a) Any district established or extended pursuant to the provisions of this part, where there is 
no indebtedness, outstanding and unpaid, incurred to accomplish any of the purposes of the 
district, may be disestablished by resolution by the city council in either of the following 
circumstances: 

 (1) If the city council finds there has been misappropriation of funds, malfeasance, or a 
violation of law in connection with the management of the district, it shall notice a hearing on 
disestablishment. 

 (2) During the operation of the district, there shall be a 30-day period each year in which 
assessees may request disestablishment of the district. The first such period shall begin one year 
after the date of establishment of the district and shall continue for 30 days. The next such 30-
day period shall begin two years after the date of the establishment of the district. Each 
successive year of operation of the district shall have such a 30-day period. Upon the written 
petition of the owners of real property or of businesses in the area who pay 50 percent or more of 
the assessments levied, the city council shall pass a resolution of intention to disestablish the 
district. The city council shall notice a hearing on disestablishment. 

(b) The city council shall adopt a resolution of intention to disestablish the district prior to 
the public hearing required by this section. The resolution shall state the reason for the 
disestablishment, shall state the time and place of the public hearing, and shall contain a proposal 
to dispose of any assets acquired with the revenues of the assessments levied within the property 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 26 

and business improvement district. The notice of the hearing on disestablishment required by this 
section shall be given by mail to the property owner of each parcel or to the owner of each 
business subject to assessment in the district, as appropriate. The city shall conduct the public 
hearing not less than 30 days after mailing the notice to the property or business owners. The 
public hearing shall be held not more than 60 days after the adoption of the resolution of 
intention. 
 
§ 36671.  Refund of remaining revenues upon disestablishment of district; Calculation of 
refund; Use of outstanding revenue collected after disestablishment of district 
 

(a) Upon the disestablishment of a district, any remaining revenues, after all outstanding 
debts are paid, derived from the levy of assessments, or derived from the sale of assets acquired 
with the revenues, or from bond reserve or construction funds, shall be refunded to the owners of 
the property or businesses then located and operating within the district in which assessments 
were levied by applying the same method and basis that was used to calculate the assessments 
levied in the fiscal year in which the district is disestablished. All outstanding assessment 
revenue collected after disestablishment shall be spent on improvements and activities specified 
in the management district plan. 

(b) If the disestablishment occurs before an assessment is levied for the fiscal year, the 
method and basis that was used to calculate the assessments levied in the immediate prior fiscal 
year shall be used to calculate the amount of any refund. 
 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 27 

 
APPENDIX 2 – LODGING BUSINESSES TO BE ASSESSED WITHIN THE 
SBSCTBID: 
 
 
Carpinteria 
Best Western Carpinteria Inn 
Casa Del Sol Motel 
Holiday Inn Express Hotel & Suites - 
Carpinteria 
Motel 6 - Carpinteria North 
Motel 6 - Carpinteria South 
Sandyland Reef Inn 
 
 
Goleta 
Bacara Resort & Spa 
Best Western South Coast Inn 
Hampton Inn, Goleta 
Holiday Inn Santa Barbara / Goleta 
Motel 6 - Goleta 
Pacifica Suites Santa Barbara 
Super 8 Motel 
 
County 
Circle Bar B Guest Ranch and Stables 
El Capitan Canyon 
Extended Stay America 
Four Seasons Resort The Biltmore 
Santa Barbara 
Hope Ranch Motel 
Inn on Summer Hill 
Ramada Limited 
San Ysidro Ranch, a Rosewood Resort 
Summerland Inn 
 
Santa Barbara City 
A White Jasmine Inn 
Agave Inn 
Alamar Motel 
Avania Inn 
Bath Street Inn Bed & Breakfast 
Beach House Inn and Apartments 

Best Western Beachside Inn  
Best Western Encina Lodge 
Best Western Pepper Tree 
Blue Sands Motel 
Brisas del Mar 
Cabrillo Inn at the Beach 
Canary Hotel 
Casa Del Mar Inn 
Castillo Inn 
Cheshire Cat Inn and Cottages 
Coast Village Inn 
Days Inn 
Eagle Inn 
El Encanto 
El Prado Inn 
Fess Parker's DoubleTree Resort 
Fiesta Inn & Suites 
Franciscan Inn 
Hacienda Motel  
Harbor House Inn 
Harbor View Inn 
Holiday Inn Express - Hotel Virginia 
Holiday Lodge 
Hotel Mar Monte 
Hotel Oceana 
Hotel Santa Barbara 
Inn at East Beach 
Inn By The Harbor 
Inn In Santa Barbara (formerly Flower 
Garden Inn) 
Inn of the Spanish Garden 
James House Santa Barbara 
Lavendar Garden Inn (formerly 
Colonial Beach Inn) 
Lemon Tree Inn 
Marina Beach Motel 
Mason Beach Inn 
Montecito Inn 



 

 
 
Santa Barbara South Coast TBID Management District Plan  Page 28 

Motel 6 - SB Beach 
Motel 6 - State St. 
Oasis Inn & Suites (Guest House Inn) 
Old Yacht Club Inn 
Orange Tree Inn 
Pacific Crest Inn By The Sea 
Parkside Inn 
Presidio Motel 
Quality Inn 
Sandman Inn, The 
Sandpiper Lodge 
Santa Barbara Inn 
Santa Barbara Tourist Hostel  

Secret Garden Inn & Cottages 
Simpson House Inn 
State Street Hotel 
Sunset Motel/ Town & Country Inn  
The Orchid Inn at Santa Barbara Bed & 
Breakfast  
Tiffany Inn 
Town & Country Inn 
Upham Hotel and Country House, The 
Villa Elegante 
Villa Rosa Inn 
West Beach Inn 

 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA MODIFYING THE SANTA BARBARA 
SOUTH COAST TOURISM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara created the  Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism 
Business Improvement District (“SBSCTBID”) on September 28, 2010 by Resolution 
No. 290.00;  
 
WHEREAS, the Property and Business Improvement District Law of 1994, Streets and 
Highways Code § 36600 et seq., authorizes the City to modify the Management District 
Plan (“MDP”) upon the written request of the Owners’ Association;  

 
WHEREAS, the SBSC Owners’ Association, the Santa Barbara Convention and Visitors 
Bureau (DBA “Visit Santa Barbara”), requested in writing that the City Council modify 
the SBSCTBID Management District Plan;  
 
WHEREAS, a modified Management District Plan has been prepared to change the 
term from a five (5) year term to a four (4) year term, ending on December 31, 2014;  
 
WHEREAS, on October 28, 2014 at 2:00 PM  at 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, 
CA 93101, the City Council adopted a Resolution of Intention, Resolution No. 14-073;  
 
WHEREAS, the public meeting and public hearing to consider the modification of the 
SBSCTBID have been properly noticed in accordance with Streets and Highways Code 
§36636;  
 
WHEREAS,  on November 25, 2014, at 2:00 PM at 735 Anacapa Street, Santa 
Barbara, CA 93101, the City Council held a public meeting regarding the modification of 
the SBSCTBID; and 
 
WHEREAS,  on December 16, 2014, at 2:00 PM at 735 Anacapa Street, Santa 
Barbara, CA 93101, the City Council held a public hearing regarding the modification of 
the SBSCTBID.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS:  
 
SECTION 1.  The recitals set forth above are adopted by the City Council as findings 
and they are true and correct. 

 



2 
 

SECTION 2.  The Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District 
is hereby modified to have a four (4) year term, beginning January 1, 2011, through 
December 31, 2014. 

 
SECTION 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by the City 
Council.  
 
 



Agenda Item No.  17 
 

File Code No.  540.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
  
SUBJECT: Stage Two Drought Update 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive an update on the status of the current drought and related efforts. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On February 11, 2014, Council declared a Stage One Drought and asked customers to 
reduce water use by 20 percent.  Council requested that staff keep them informed and 
report back monthly with a status update on the City’s water supplies, conservation 
efforts, and current work efforts.  On May 20, 2014, Council declared a Stage Two 
Drought in response to a continued water shortage forecasted for next year and the 
inability of the community to reduce water usage by 20 percent.  This report will cover 
the following items: 
 

• Water Supply Outlook/Weather Forecast 
• Drought Response Capital Projects 
• Conservation Efforts 

 
Water Supply Outlook 
 
The water supply outlook remains unchanged from the November 18, 2014 drought 
update presentation. The Santa Barbara area received some moderate rainfall in early 
December, but the area needs pro-longed wet weather to make a significant impact on 
water supplies.  The National Weather Service is projecting a weak El Nino weather 
condition and equal chances of above, below, or normal rainfall for Santa Barbara over 
the next few months.  Due to the uncertainty in projected rainfall, staff is planning for 
continued drought conditions. Staff continues to work on securing additional 
supplemental water, accelerating drought related capital projects, and sustaining a 
strong message for extraordinary conservation. The most recent water conservation 
numbers for October 2014 show an ongoing 20 percent reduction in water use.  Staff is 



Council Agenda Report 
Stage Two Drought Update 
December 16, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 

 

hopeful that the drought water rates that went into effect on July 1, 2014 will encourage 
the community to continue sustaining the 20 percent water use reduction.  
 
Drought Response Capital Projects 
 
Staff is moving forward with the design and construction of capital work projects to 
assist with water supply during the drought. This includes the acceleration of 
groundwater well replacement and projects that use poor quality groundwater in place 
of potable water for irrigation.  Groundwater wells include the Corporation Yard Well, 
which is currently online and whose water is being treated at the Ortega Groundwater 
Treatment Plant; Valle Verde Well, whose water is being pumped into the City’s 
recycled water system; and the new Alameda Well, that was recently awarded a 
contract for construction.   
 
At the direction of Council, staff is moving forward with the reactivation of the City’s 
Desalination Facility.  On November 17, 2014, the Request For Proposal to design, 
build and operate the facility was sent to the three pre-qualified firms.  Responses are 
due back on February 5, 2014.  Staff is currently working on applying for a $40 million 
State Revolving Fund loan for the project.  
 
Conservation Efforts 
 
Staff has increased the Water Conservation Outreach Program through an enhanced 
drought media campaign: additional targeted outreach, including increased weekly 
messaging through social media; online news outlets and industry contacts; 
presentations to community and industry groups; additional printed materials with 
drought messaging; targeted utility bill messaging; drought signage at City facilities; and 
additional trainings and workshops. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/JH/mh 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
  
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No.  18 
 

File Code No.  640.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department  
 Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration Of Drought-Related Restrictions And Regulations 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council:   
 
A. Receive a report outlining possible water use and development restrictions to be 

considered in response to drought;  
B. Direct Planning Division staff to further develop options for development-related 

regulations in consultation with the Planning Commission, and return to Council 
for action in 2015 pending persistent or worsening drought conditions; and 

 C. Direct Water Resources staff to work with the Water Commission on further 
water use restrictions and return to Council for action in 2015 pending persistent 
or worsening drought conditions. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Per the City’s adopted Water Shortage Contingency Plan, Council should consider 
regulations of water use and suspension of permit approvals during Stage Two and 
Stage Three Drought Conditions.  On May 20, 2014, a Stage Two Drought Condition 
was declared, which included restrictions on water use. On October 14, 2014, as part of 
the monthly Drought Update to Council, staff presented information on potential 
development restrictions.  The Council asked that staff return for a more in-depth 
discussion at a future meeting.  
 
An inter-departmental staff team has been considering a range of options for possible 
action by Council to manage water use should a Stage Three Drought Condition be 
declared.  Primary considerations include understanding the context of the water 
demand associated with new development and the potential water savings that may be 
achieved through various actions. 
 
Staff is seeking input and direction from Council to further develop possible restrictions 
and regulations while working with the Planning Commission and Water Commission.   
In is anticipated that we will have public participation in these meetings through 



 
Council Agenda Report 
Consideration Of Drought-Related Restrictions and Regulations 
December 16, 2014 
Page 2 

 

additional outreach to landscape professionals, project developers, property owners, 
businesses and residents. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff is planning for continued drought conditions and possible Stage Three declaration 
in 2015. Since July 2014, the community has been successful in meeting the 20 percent 
water demand reduction goal. However, since water usage doubles in the summer 
months due to increased demand for outdoor watering, the summer of 2015 offers a 
significant opportunity to conserve limited water supplies should conditions continue.  If 
the 20 percent reduction in demand is not sustained through the winter, additional 
demand reductions will be necessary in Summer 2015 in order to meet the annual 
drought demand target. Additional demand reductions could also be required should the 
supply condition worsen. 
 
Possible additional drought regulations under consideration include development 
restrictions, additional water use restrictions, and suspension of approvals of new 
private groundwater well permits. The development and water use restrictions should be 
considered within the context of potential demand reductions resulting from the action. 
Suspension of groundwater well permits is a preventative action for groundwater 
management purposes.  
 
During the last prolonged drought event (approximately 1986-1992), significant time and 
effort was spent to determine, on a case by case basis, if a proposed project could be 
provided sufficient water supplies without significantly impacting the City’s ability to 
provide adequate supplies to existing users.  This process required a project specific 
water use analysis for each development proposal.  One of the major differences today, 
in comparison to the last significant drought, is changes in technology and building code 
requirements with respect to water use efficiency.  As a result, new projects have 
substantially lower water use due to required water efficient plumbing fixtures and 
landscaping.  Additionally, the City’s overall water consumption is less now than it was 
back then, and there are significantly fewer development proposals in the pipeline.  
Therefore, the need for development restrictions is not as critical now as it was during 
the last prolonged drought. 
 
The following table includes a summary of various potential water use regulations and 
development restrictions, and an estimate as to when they might be considered for 
implementation.  Refer to discussion below for additional information about these 
potential regulations and restrictions. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Council Agenda Report 
Consideration Of Drought-Related Restrictions and Regulations 
December 16, 2014 
Page 3 

 

 Level of Regulation 

Regulation/Restriction Status Quo 
(Stage 2) Medium High 

(Stage 3) 
Stage 2 Water Use Regulations  X X X 

Voluntary Landscape Deferral  X  
Alerting Applicants of potential future 
development restrictions (i.e. no vested right)  X  

Required Landscape Deferral   X 

No new pools   X 
No building permits for projects with net new 
water use, with specified exceptions (i.e. 
Affordable Housing, Health & Safety) 

  X 

Work with County to apply City development 
restrictions to out-of-City water customers   X 

No new out-of-City water customers   X 
Additional Water Use Restrictions (e.g. no 
watering turf, with some exceptions)   X 

Suspend approval of permits for new private 
groundwater wells   X 

 
Possible Development Restrictions 
 
As noted in the October 14, 2014 Council Agenda Report, new development represents 
approximately 1% of the City’s drought water supply projection (11,440 acre feet per 
year) for the next three years.  As this represents a very small portion of the City’s 
overall water system demands, it is important to balance the need for drought demand 
management with potential impacts to the local economy. 
 
Staff is proposing a phased approach to restrictions aimed at new development.  The 
first phase would include a voluntary landscape deferral program for aesthetic 
landscape purposes.  Certain landscape features would continue to be required to be 
installed if they are necessary for compliance with the City’s Storm Water Management 
Program, or were otherwise related to a special condition of approval, or to address a 
health and safety concern such as significant erosion or landslide threat.  
 
Staff had originally proposed this as a mandatory program; however, in hearing 
feedback from the Council at the October 14, 2104 meeting, it was determined that this 
would require a significant amount of effort and would likely result in relatively little water 
savings overall.  Staff has received requests from applicants to defer landscape 



 
Council Agenda Report 
Consideration Of Drought-Related Restrictions and Regulations 
December 16, 2014 
Page 4 

 

installation and we believe it would be helpful to allow that flexibility although little water 
savings would be expected.  Development projects that require design review and 
include new or altered landscaping are required to comply with the City's adopted 
Landscape Design Standards for Water Conservation (refer to Attachment 1), so any 
new/altered landscaping would be water efficient. Generally, outdoor water use is 
estimated at approximately 50% of total water use, so if all new development postponed 
landscape and irrigations, it would represent approximately 0.5% of the City’s drought 
water supply projection for the next three years.  Staff is seeking Council direction to 
pursue this approach at present by returning to Council with an amendment to the 
Stage 2 Drought Resolution. 
 
The next phase would include mandatory landscape deferral (of aesthetic features), 
suspension of building permits for  new pools, and suspension of building permits for 
projects that result in net new water use (generally, an increase in number of units or 
commercial floor area).  These actions could be implemented as part of a Stage Three 
Drought declaration, or could be further phased, depending on the drought condition at 
that time.  Suspending building permits for projects that cause net new water use would 
be a major restriction on the development community, and it is anticipated that there 
would be exceptions to this suspension, such as for priority projects (e.g. essential 
services and affordable housing).  Staff is seeking initial direction from Council on the 
parameters of such a permit suspension, and public outreach including the Planning 
Commission.  Any new development restriction regulations would be incorporated into a 
Council Resolution or Ordinance. 
 
Possible Water Use Regulations 
 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) Chapter 14.20 specifies regulations related to 
the use of water supplied by the City’s water distribution system. Section 14.20.215 
establishes water use regulations that become effective upon Council’s adoption of a 
resolution declaring a Stage Two or Stage Three Drought Condition.  On May 20, 2014, 
Council adopted Resolution 14-027 declaring a Stage Two Drought Condition and 
establishing those water use regulations currently in effect (refer to Attachment 2).   
 
Staff will discuss potential additional water use regulations should they be necessary, 
including restrictions on: 1) methods of irrigation, and 2) irrigation of certain types of 
landscaping (e.g. no watering of turf, with some exceptions).   
 



 
Council Agenda Report 
Consideration Of Drought-Related Restrictions and Regulations 
December 16, 2014 
Page 5 

 

Possible Groundwater Well Regulations  
 
Council may wish to consider imposing groundwater well regulations that might limit or 
restrict altogether the use of wells in the City during a Stage Three Drought.  Many 
agencies have regulations or ordinances which forbid customers from having both City 
water supply connections and their own wells.  The City could also prevent drilling new 
wells during a defined drought period. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Additional information on potential impacts to the City budget would be provided prior to 
implementation of any development restrictions.  In general, restricting issuance of 
building permits would reduce revenue to the Building Division and would require 
additional staff time to monitor.  Implementing a temporary deferral on landscape plans 
would have minimal financial impact; however, it would require increased staff time to 
manage the deferrals. 
 
The City’s adopted water rates assume a 20 percent reduction in demands during 
drought. If additional measures are taken to reduce demands beyond 20 percent, there 
could be financial implications due to reduced revenue to the Water Fund, which is 
required for cost of service. Loss of revenue can be addressed through use of Water 
Fund reserves or changes to water rates.  
 
Additional water use restrictions may require additional Water Conservation staffing for 
enforcement of regulations in a timely and equitable manner. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
All of the options discussed herein would be in response to water supply shortages 
associated with the drought.  The goal is to minimize additional demands on the City’s 
water supply in order to maintain supplies to existing water customers, while balancing 
overall impact on the community.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Resolution on Landscape Design Standards for Water 

Conservation 
2. Resolution on Stage 2 Drought Declaration and Regulations 

 
PREPARED BY: Bettie Weiss, City Planner 
 Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 Rebecca Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



ATTACHMENT 1













ATTACHMENT 2









Agenda Item No.  19 
 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 16, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference With City Attorney – Pending Litigation  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
  
That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection 
(d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed. 
 
The pending litigation is Frank Banales, Sebastian Aldana Jr., Jacqueline Inda, Cruzito 
Herrera Cruz, and Benjamin Cheverez, v. City of Santa Barbara, et al., SBSC Case 
No.1468167. 
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 


	1.DOC
	2.DOCX
	3.DOCX
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.PDF
	8.DOC
	9.PDF
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.PDF
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.PDF
	21.DOC
	22.DOC
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	25.DOC
	26.PDF
	27.PDF
	28.DOC
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	DECEMBER 16, 2014
	AGENDA
	Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes of the adjourned regular meeting of November 24, 2014, and the regular meeting of November 25, 2014.
	Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adding Section 5.04.735 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code to Create a Business Tax Exemption For Artists Earning Less Than $5,000...
	Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Section 28.22.030 of Chapter 28.22 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code.
	Recommendation:  That Council accept the November 2014 Investment Report.
	Recommendation:  That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2015 Interim Financial Statements for the Four Months Ended October 31, 2014.
	Recommendation:  That Council:
	A. Reject the apparent low bid for construction from Aguilera Brothers Construction, Inc., as non-responsive for the Alameda Park Well Relocation Project - Infrastructure and Site Restoration; and
	B. Award a contract with Brough Construction, Inc., in their lowest responsive bid amount of $180,855 for construction of the Alameda Park Well Relocation Project - Infrastructure and Site Restoration, Bid No. 3728; and authorize the Public Works Dire...
	Recommendation:  That Council award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc., in their low bid amount of $210,890 for construction of the Voluntario Street Curb Cuts Project, Bid No. 3739, and authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract...
	Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services contract, subject to approval as to form by the City Attorney, with CDM Smith in the amount of $134,728 for design services of the El Estero Wast...
	Recommendation:  That Council:
	A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services contract with Brown and Caldwell in the amount of $788,683 for final design of the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondary Process Improvements Project - Phase II, a...
	B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Finding that the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondary Treatment Process Improvement Project is Substantially Complex and, Therefore, Requires a Cons...
	Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Finance Director to negotiate and execute a one-year contract, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, with Brinks Security Services to provide Armored Car Transportation services for the period of Januar...
	Recommendation:  That Council:
	A. Set the date of January 27, 2015, at 2:00 p.m. for hearing the appeal filed by Patricia Foley of the Planning Commission approval of an application for property owned by John Park and located at 511 Brosian Way, Assessor's Parcel No. 047-030-011, A...
	B. Set the date of January 26, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. for a site visit to the property located at 511 Brosian Way.
	Recommendation:  That Council hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Issuance of the California Statewide Communities Development Authority Revenue Bonds (...
	Recommendation:  That Council find the proposed development at 400 Hitchcock Way for Tesla Motors, Inc., a Community Benefit Project pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 28.85.020.A.3 and allocate 8,700 square feet of nonresidential floor ...
	Recommendation:  That Council:
	A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Modifying the Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District; and
	B. Adopt the Modified Santa Barbara South Coast Tourism Business Improvement District Management District Plan.
	Recommendation:  That Council receive an update on the status of the current drought and related efforts.
	Recommendation:  That Council:
	A. Receive a report outlining possible water use and development restrictions to be considered in response to drought;
	B. Direct Planning Division staff to further develop options for development-related regulations in consultation with the Planning Commission, and return to Council for action in 2015 pending persistent or worsening drought conditions; and
	C. Direct Water Resources staff to work with the Water Commission on further water use restrictions and return to Council for action in 2015 pending persistent or worsening drought conditions.
	Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Frank Banales, Sebastian Aldan...



